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STATEMENT OF PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On January 18, 1998, Robert James Gelhaus, Jr.’s dead body was
discovered in a taxicab in Middletown. Pa 15, ¥ 2. On February 1,
1998, defendarn’ Gregory S. Bruno was charged by complaint, numbers
1998-000043-1331 and 1998-000044-1331, with murder, felony murder,
armed robbery, and possession of a weapon for an unlawful purpose.
Pa 15, 9 5; (2T:2-6 to 2-10).!

On February 10, 1998, a Substitution of Attorney was filed
to replace Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla (“the firm”) as counsel
of record for the Monmouth County Trial Region of the Public
Defender's Office. Pa 27, 1 1.

On July 16, 1998, the Monmouth County Prosecutor's Office
filed a Notice of Motion to Disqualify Counsel, on the ground
that the firm's representation of defendant posed a conflict of

nterest and created an appearance of impropriety. Pa 1-2;
(2T:4-9 to 4-18). The firm opposed the State’s motion and
cross-moved for discovery and a speedy trial. Pa 24-25.

Cn September 11, 1998, the Honorable James A. Kenuedy,

1 1T refers to the transcript of the proceedings of September
11, 1998.
2T refers to the transcript of the proceedings of December

11, 1998.
1




J.S.C. heard the State's motion, (1T), then denied it on
Decewber 11, 1998. (2T). An order was signed to this effect on
December 15, 1998. Pa 91.

On December 21, 1998, a Monmouth County Grand Jury handed
up Indictment No. 98-12-2324, charging defendant Gregory S.
Bruno with murder, N.J.S.A. 2C:11-3a, felony murder, N.J.S.A.
2C:11-3¢c, armed robbery, N.J.S.A. 2C:15-1, and possession of a
weapon for an unlawful purpose, N.J.S.A. 2C:39-4. Pa 107-09.

On December 22, 1998, the defense made a motion to compel

discovery under R. 3:13-3. Pa 92-94.

On December 31, 1998, the State moved before this Court for
leave to appeal the interlocut-ry order denying disqualification
of the firm. Pa 95-96.

On January 11, 1999, the State responded to the defense’s
motion for discovery by cross moving for a stay of pie-trial

~~ceedings pending disposition of the disqualification issue on
appeal. Pa 97-98. On January 19, 1999, the defense filed its
opposition to the State’s motion for a stay and simultaneously

] cross-moved fo. a reduction in bail. Pa 99-100.

On February 5, 1999, the trial court granted the

defendant’s motion for discovery, denied the State’s motion for

e s

a stay, and denied the defendant’s motion for a bail reduction. &y

samsi

Discovery was to be provided to defendant within twenty (20)

ot
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days of the order. Pa 101-103.

On February 11, 1999, this Court granted the State leave to
proceed with its interlocutory appeal of the order denying
disqualificati-a. Pa 104.

On February 26, 1999, the State moved for reconsideration
of the order denying a stay of pretrial proceedings on the
ground leave had been granted to appeal the December 15 order.
Pa 105-0U6. On March 1, 1999, the trial court denied the State’s

motion for reconsideration. Thereafter, on the same day,

defendant was arraigned, discovery was provided, and no notice |
of aggravating factors was seirved. A status conference has been

scheduled for June 14, 1999.

o
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On or about October 1992, Ronald D. Ohnmacht, a Middletown
police officer, retained Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla ("the
firm") to defend him against a civil rights complaint filed in a
federal district court. Pa 36, § 4; see Pa 16, 1 9.

Ohnmacht con‘acted Norman M. Hobbie, Esg., a member of the
firm, because of Hobbie’s reputation and a personal friendship
Ohnmacht had with him. Pa 17; % 10. The firm assumed
representation, and Michele Querques, Esq. and Guy P. Ryan, Esq.
were assigned to handle the “day-to-day defense” of Ohnmacht
against the allegations. Pa 40,  1; see Pa 38, 91 1, 2; Pa 36,
15.

The civil rights complaint sued Ohnmacht in both his
individual and official capacities, alleging Sixth Amendment

violations arising out of several police interviews Ohnmacht had

conducted in July 1989, Pa 16, 19 9. Brief discovery was had

and motions were filed. Pa 40, 1 2. Ultimately, the matter was
resolved in Ohnmacht's favor in 1993. Pa 36, 1 6; Pa 17, 1 10.
In 1996, Ohnmacht suffered a work-related injury and sought
to file a worker's compensation claim. Pa 36, 1 7; Pa 17, 1 11.
Ohnmacht again contacted Hobbie, who referred the case to

M. Scott Tashjy, ®sq., a member of the firm who handles worker's




compensation matters, Pa 36, § 7; Pa 30-31, 9 4.

On June 24, 1997, the worker's compensation claim was
"settled." 1d. 9 4; Pa 17, ¢ 12. At the time the settlement
order was entered, Ohnmacht and Tashjy discussed the possibility
of filing a "re-opener claim" in the event Ohnmacht's injury
worsened. Id. 1 12; see N.J.S.A. 34:15-27. On June 26, 1997,
Tashjy sent Ohnmacht a letter confirming their conversation
regardinc the re-opener and advising that Ohnmacht should watch
the passage of time so that his opportunity for an amended award
would not expire. Pa 19.

On September 29, 1997, Ta_hjy sent Ohnmacht another letter
enclosing three blank Applications for Review of Modification of
Formal Award. The letter instructed Ohnmacht to "sign where
indicated and return same to me." Pa 20.

On October 13, 1997, Tashjy sent Ohnmacht another letter,
which read in full:

Please be advised that we have filed a
Reopener Claim Petition with regard to your
Workcis’ Compensation Claim. Please contact
my office and advise me specifically the
complaints you have with regard to your leg
and your neck. As you will recall, when we
originally settled this matter, we reserved
the right to reopen this claim, but we must
indicate to the Court how your injuries have
“worsened” since the date of the last Order
in this matter. Thus, your input is

essential. Please contact me at your
convenicice so we may discuss these issues.

Thank you for your attention.
5




e b The letter (as were each of them) was personally
addressed to Detective Ohnmacht and personally signed by Scott
Tashjy. See Pa 19-23.

A fourth letter focllowed on January 6, 1998. In this
letter, Tash)y again instructed Ohnmacht to “contact my office
to schedule an appointment . . . regarding the reopening of your
Worker’s Compensation claim.” Tashjy offered to meet Ohnmacht
“at headquarters” if it was inconvenient for Ohnmacht to come to
the firm’s office. Pa 22.

On January 18, °998, a Middletown police officer was on
routine patrol when he discovered Robert James Gelhaus, Jr.'s
dead body in a station wagon taxicab. Ohnmacht was designated
by the department to serve as lead detective in connection with
the homicide investigation. Pa 15, 91 2. Consequently, Ohnmacht
has served as the affiant for several search warrants, and has

:en twenty or more formal statements, in connection with the

2 fThe firm certified that the first sentence of this letter

contained a typographical error: it should have read the firm
had not yet filed a Reopener Claim Petition. Pa 31, 1 6. of
course, regardless of the “truth” of the representation in the
letter, Ohnmacht would be entitled to rely on the fact his re-
opener petition had been filed, because lawyers are “obligated
to establish an office procedure so that . . . his clients are
kept informed of pending matters.” Matter of Schwartz, 99 N.J.
510, 518 (1985) (citing State v. Palmieri, 75 N.J. 488, 489
(1978)) .

6
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homicide investigation. Id. 1 4; (1T:5-25 to 6-2) (numbering
statements at "“closer to 30”). The only statement defendant
gave (at which time he denied any involvement in the homicide
and advanced an alibi) was witnessed by Detective Ohnmacht. See
(1T:5-18 to 6-11; :37-1 to 37-4).

On January 26, 1998, Tashjy sent Ohnmacht a fifth letter

reading,
Please contact me at your earliest possible
convenience so that we may schedule a
mutually agreed upon date and time for an
appointment so0 that we may discuss reopening
your claim. In the alternative, please
advise me as to your availability at
Headquarters, and I will be happy to meet
you there.

Pa 23.

On February 1, 1998, defendant Gregory S. Bruno was charged
vith Gelhaus’ murder, as well as with felony murder, armed
ropbery, and possession of a weapon for an unlawful purpose. Pa
15, 9 5; (2T:2-6 to 2-10). Defendant’s family then engaged in a
(three-day) “extensive search and interview process” to find
counsel for defendant. Pa 45, 1 2. As of February 4, 1998, Lhe
family retained the firm to defend Bruno on the charges. Pa 27,
9 20. A substitution of attorney form was filed with the court
as of February 10, 1998. 1Id. 1 21.

When Ohnmacht learned that the firm had entered its

appearance on behalf of defendant, he contacted Tashjy to

7




inquire about the status of his worker’s compensation claim, and
he communicated his objection to the firm’s representation of
defendant in the criminal proceeding. Pa 16, § 8.

Ohnmacht had intended to pursue his re-opener opportunity

9 and, up until that February 13, he believed the firm was

representing him in this regard. Pa 17, 9 12. Oh-macht never

intended to “switeh lawyers” in what he perceived to be the

middle Cf the worker’s compensation proceeding; rather, he

consistently had assumed the firm, which handled the initial

“"phase” of the litigation, Pa 17, 9 12, would “continue” and
handle the re-opener. Pa 52, § 3.

On February 13, 1998, Tashjy “advised Detective Ohnmacht
that our firm could not represent him in the re-opener of his

Worker’s Compensation matter because . . . of the representation SN

f Gregory Bruno by Norman H4Hobbie and Edward Bertucio of my
i orfice.” Pa 31, 1 5. At the same time, Tashjy gave Ohnmacht a
list of other attorneys who practiced worker’s compensation law.

Pa 31, 9 5; Pa 89, ¢ 5. February 13 likewise marked the date

Tashjy informed Ohnmacht “our firm ended our representation of

E him with the settlement of his Workers’ Compensation case on or 2
8
g about June 24, 1997.” Ppa 89, 1 5. Tashjy certified before the
§ court below that he “took no affirmative action after . ., .,
" ; February 13, 1998 . . . to pursue a re-opener or any other claim '
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for Workers’ Compensation benefits on behalf of Detective
Ohnmacht.” Pa 31, q 5.

The firm never sought Ohnmacht’s consent when it was
retained by the Brunos’ and, on his own initiative, Ohnmacht
advised Tashjy that he objected to said representation. Pa 18,
1 14. Ohnmacht was told that the firm intended to represent
defendant Bruno whether or not Ohnmacht objected. Pa 16, 1 8;
see (1T.23-10 to 23-12).

On May 6, 1998, Monmouth County Assistant Prosecutor Peter
E. Warshaw, Jr. mailed a letter advising the firm of the
apparent conflict and inviting the firm to review the matter
with defendant Bruno. Pa 10. The letter further notified the
firm a formal motion would be filed if the firm intended to
remain as counsel for defendant. Pa 19-11. In _eply, the firm
indicated it would “nct remo— e itself as counsel in this case,”
Pa 13; Ohnmacht was not a present client, because his worker’s
compensation case was closed in September 1997, and defendant
Bruno and his family “have instructed us to remain as counsel.”
Pa 12.

Consequently, the State made an application for
disqualification of Giordano, Halleran & Cielsa on the ground
that representation of defendant Bruno contravened RPC 1.7(a)

and presented an impermissible appearance of impropriety. Pa 1-

§ oo
# ey \“_‘ ._ £
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2 The State also requested a testimonial hearing, as well as
discovery of a list of Middletown police officers the firm had
represented in the past, to determine whether the firm’s
representation in the Bruno matter would present an appearance
of impropriety. Pa 5-6, 99 10, 11.

The trial court denied the State’s motion by determining
that (1) the letter~ the firm sent to Ohnmacht were merely “good
practice letters,” (2T:8-18 to 8-21), Ohnmacht was a past
client, and, therefore, RPC 1.9 applied and RPC 1.7 did not,
(2T:8-11 to 9-4); (2) the prior matters for which the firm
represented Ohnmacht were not “substantially related” to the
criminal case involving defendant Bruno, (2T:8-8 to 8-10); and,
therefore, (3) the firm’s continued representation of defendant

would not be improper, (2T:10-17 to 10-19).

e e —
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LEGAL ARGUMENT
=== ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE FIRM SHOULD BE DISQUALIFIED
BECAUSE IT ACCEPTED DEFENDANT
BRUNO’S CASE 1IN VIOLATION oF RPC
1.7 (a)

Respectfully, the courc below erred when it characterized

Ohnmacht as a “former client” and consequently applied RPC 1.9

instead of Rpc 3 ot Ohnmacht was a Present client at the time
the firm accepted the retainer from the Bruno family. By

accepting said retainer and then terminating representation of
Ohnmacht, the firm violated RPC 1.7 and disregarded the duty of
loyalty it owed Ohnmacht. The firm should be disqualified from
«ontinued representation of Bruno.

“A lawyer may not represent the adversary of one of his

present clients,” e.qg., Gray v. Commercial Union Ins. Co., 191

N.J. Super. 590, 599 (App. Div. 1983), even if the two matters

are “wholly unrelated.” ABa Model Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 1.7 comment (1989). Rpc 1.7(a) Provides,

A lawyer shal) not represent a client if the
representation of that client will be
directly adverse to another client unless:

(1) the lawyer reasonably believes
that r.presentation wil) not adversely

11




affect the relationship with the other
client; and

(2) each client consents after a full
disclosure of the circumstances and |
consultation with the client, except that a |
public entity cannot consent to any such
representation. i

RPC 1.7 protects the duty of loyalty and recognizes that “[f]rom

that duty issues the prohibition against representing clients

124, 120 (1993). The Rule’s applicability in this case is
straightforward.

|

with conflicting _nterests.” In re Opinion No. 653, 132 N.J. L
|

|

|

!

First,  in the pending criminal matter, the statuses of
Gregory Bruno, as the defendan*, and Ohnmacht, as a Key witness
for the State, place them in “directly adverse” positions. See ‘.

In the Matter of Garber, 95 N.J. 597, 604 (1984); In the Matter

of Cohn, 46 N.J. 202, 212-13 (1966); State v. Morelli, 132 N.J. B
Super. 67, 73-74 (App. Div. 1977); state v. Catanoso, 222 N.J. { R
Super. 641, 645-47 (Law Div. 1987); cf. State v. Needham, 298 :
! N.J. Super. 100, 103 (Law Div. 1996) . '
Second, the condition for exemption in subsection (1) is i
not satisfied. It appears undisputed that the firm did not "
; “reasonably believe” that continued representation of Ohnmacht
j would not “adversely affect” the relationship with Bruno. For B
-
3 this reason, the firm terminated the relationship it had with ——
bl

Ohnmacht as of Felruary 13, 1998. See Pa 31, 1 5; (1T:22-14 TO

12




22-17).
Third, the condition for exemption in subsection (2) jisg not
satisfied. It is undisputed that Ohnmacht never consented to
the firm’s joint representation of himself angd Bruno, and he
never consented to termination of his relationship with the firm
SO that the .irm could accept Bruno’s case. Moreover, Ohnmacht,
on his own initiative, approached Mr, Tashjy imn =diately after
learning the firm accepted the Bruno retainer and voiced his
objection. See Pa 16, 9 8; pa 18, 9 14.
The issue is whether Ohnmacht was a “client” within the
meaning of RPC 1.7 at the time the firm accepted the retainer
from the Bruno family. The firm urged below that RPC 1.7 did
not apply, because the worker’s Ccompensation “matter was closed
in June of 1997,” and the firm had submitted no documents or
Pdperwork to the courts to reopen Detective Ohnmacht’s claim.
(1T:20-13 to 20-19; :21-16 to 21-19). The trial court agreed
ad applied RPC 1.9. The court held:
The Giordano firm’s representation of
Detective Ohnmacht terminated on or shortly
after June 24, 1997 coincidentally with the
set*tlament of the workers compensation
claim. The good Practice letters cited by
the State . . . do not change my opinion.

(2T:8-15 to 8-21). This determination was wrong. As a matter

of law, the firm had an affirmative, ongoing relationship with

Ohnmacht as of February 4, 1998; this triggered applicability of
13




RPC 1.7 and precluded the firm from ousting Ohnmacht in order to
accept Bruno’s case.?

The trial court’s erred in its conceptualization of what
“representation” means under the Rules of Professional Conduct.
The Supreme CHurt has rejected a “narrow [] understanding of
what ‘representation’ entails in assessing the application of

the ethics governing conflicts.” In the Matter of Berkowitz,

136 N.J. 134, 144-45 (1994) . See generally Dewey v. R.J.

Reynolds Tobacco Co., 109 N.J. 201, 214 (1988) (instructing that

the Rules “presuppose a larger legal context shaping the
lawyer’s role,” and such context should be viewed in defining
“representation”) .

Representation has been defined as “inherently an aware
ccasensual relationship,” founded upon the lawyer affirmatively

accepting a professional responsibility. In re Palmieri, 76
=2_ZI¢e talmieri

* The facts establishing the relationship of Ohnmacht and the

firm are undisputed. These are reflected by the firm’s prior
handling of the civil rights suit and the worker’s compensation
matter, as well as by the nature of the repeated letters Tashjy
sent Ohnmacht. Because the facts are undisputed, the
determination whether Ohnmacht was the firm’s “client” at the
time Bruno’s case was accepted is one to be made as a matter of
law. As such, this Court’s review of the lower court’s ruling
is plenary. E.g., Manalapan Realty v. Township Committee, 140
N.J. 366, 378 (1995) ("A trial court’s interpretation of the law
and the legal consequences that flow from established facts are
not entitled to .ny special deference.”) .
14
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N.J. 46, 58 (1978). The relationship “need not necessarily be
articulated in writing but may, under certain circumstances, be
inferred from the conduct of the parties.” Id. at 58-59.

The existence of an attorney-client relationship does not

rest on whether the lawyer submits a bill, Herbert v. Haytaian,

292 N.J. Super. 426, 436 (App. Div. 1996), or whether the client

pays a retainer or fee, Matter of Schwartz, 99 N.J. 510, 516-17

(1985); In_ re Netchert, 78 N.J. 445, 451, 453 (1979); In re
Makowski, 73 N.J. 265, 269 (1977). Compare with (1T:20-17 to
20-18). It is not nezessarily co-extensive with initiation or

termination of 1litigation in a court. In the Matter of

Berkowitz, supra, 136 N.J. at 144-45; In the Matter of Garber,

supra, 95 N.J. at 605-06. Compare with (1T:20-13 to 20-19; :21-

16 to 21-19).

For example, in Berkowitz, supra, the Court rejected a

m’s position that it was not “actually” representing a given
client, because the client “had not yet decided to oppose” a
particular zoning ordinance. 136 N.J. at 144. The Court found
an attcrney-client relationship and, conseguently a conflict of
rinterest, by appreciating (1) the firm’s otherwise established
relationship with the client, (2) the firm’s indication to the
client that it would “look into” the zoning matter, and (3) the

client’s reliance upon the anticipated advice. Id. at 144-45.

15
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Similarly, in In the Matter of Garber, supra, the Court

rejected the position that a client/State’s witness became a
“former client” merely because the State had dismissed the
indictment in connection with which the client promised to be a
witness. Again, the Court examined the circumstances
surrounding the representation and concluded that the attorney
“knew or should have known” of another pending i.dictment and
the witness-cliert’s continuing need for advice and undivided
loyalty. 95 N.J. at 605-06

Analyzing these two cases together, it becoines clear that
whether an individual is a “client” does not necessarily turn
upon the filing of a complaint, the dismissal of a suit, or the
settlement of a claim. In Berkowitz, the Court determined that
RPC 1.7 applied, even though the “client” had not yet made a
decision to pursue the =zoning issue. Consistent with this
rationale, Ohnmacht could well have been (and, in fact, was) the
tirm’s client as of February 4, 1998, even though he had not yet
communicated his desire to file the re-opener. In Garber, the
Court determined that (the predecessor to) RPC 1.7 applied, even
though the indictment implicating the “client” had been
dismissed at the time the adverse representation was accepted.
Consistent with this rationale, Ohnmacht could well have been

(and, in fact, was) the firm’s client as of February 4, 1998,

16
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even though the worker’s compensation claim had been settled
June 1997. It follows that the trial court erred when it viewed
the date of settlement as automatically indicating the date
Ohnmacht became a former client.

In Berkowitz and Garber, the Supreme Court examined the

nature of the relationship between the attorney and client, the
communications between them, and the reasonable reliance

engendercd in the client by the attorney’s conduct. See

[

lso

Matter of Schwartz, supra, 99 N.J. at 514-16; In re Netchert,

supra, 78 N.J. at 453. The lower court here should not
summarily have discounted th: circumstances surrounding the
firm’s relationship with Ohnmacht and the significance of the
nur2rous communications post-June 1997.
The Rules of Professicnal Conduct allow an attorney and
‘ent to define the scope of representation in a given matter
and to limit such representation if the client consents after
consultation. RPC 1.2. The Rules also require a lawyer to
communicate wiihh his client about the status of a matter and
explain a matter to the extent necessary to permit the client to
make informed decisions regarding the representation. RPC 1.4.
Finally, the Rules require that, “upon termination of
representation,” the lawyer give the client reasonable notice.

RPC 1.16(d).




First, the scope of this firm’s representation of Ohnmacht
extended to the handling of the re-opener claim. RPC 1.2.
Whatever scope of representation is intended in a given case, =
“both the <client and the attorney must achieve clear

understanding and agreement” from the outset of the

relationship. N.J. Advisory Committee on Professional Ethics

Opinion 671 (Apr. 5, 1993). The law holds that any “[d]oubt |
"

about whether a lawyer-client relationship . . . exists should

be clarified by the lawyer, preferably in writing, so that the
client will not mistakenly suppose the lawyer is looking after
the client’s affairs when the lawyer has ceased to do so.” ABA

Model Rules of Professional Conduct, R. 1.3 comment (1989)

(emphasis added).

When the lawyer fails to directly tell the client that -

limitations, conditions, or gJualifications attend the scope of
representation and, as a result, the client relies upon the
lawyer for continuing representation on a given matter, a
present attorney-client relationship will be found. In In the

Matter of Schwartz, supra, the attorney who handled his client’s

legal matter at the trial level told her he also would handle &

her appeal, but only if she paid a fee of $200. The attorney y g

| :
filed a notice of appeal only “to protect [the client’s] ! WG
rights.” No written retainer existed between the parties. The <
18 >
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attcrney repeatedly told the client he would not pursue the
appeai unless and until he received a $100 retainer. He had
several telephone conversations with her and wrote her two
letters. 1In one of those letters, he indicated his firm was “in
the process of preparing the brief and appendix for your
appeal.” In both letters, however, he related he had not yet ~ -
received the rete.ner. In the latter communication, he wrote
“[w]le are running out of time to perfect your appeal and you
still have not retained this firm to represent you . . . . You
must act soon or the appeal will be dismissed.” 99 N.J. at 513-
14.

One of the issues before the Supreme Court was when
representation commenced, whether at the time the notice of

appeal was filed, or the time the attorney received the Rl

retainer. The Court found the former, reasoning,

4 i [A]lthough respondent did not believe he was
W representing Ms. Schulz until he received 3
| the $100 retainer, the record is clear that

handle her case. In his November 28, 1979
{ letter, for example, he sought to convey
{ this by inference. He informed her that he
was “in the process of preparing the Brief
and Appendix” for the appeal and “send us -

i $100.00 for the retainer, so that we can P

| continue working on your appeal.” (Emphasis
i added). Even in his January letter in which 0

he states “you still have not retained this
firm to represent you,” he added “it is just —
not fair for us to work on this appeal
without having been retained.”

19 i




Id. at 517 (first emphasis added). The Court recognized the
client relied upon the attorney to handle the appeal. 1Id. The |+

Schwartz decision clearly places upon the attorney the
obligation to dispel the client’s reliance if it is unjustified,
and it imposes upon the attorney the ethical liability for not
sufficiently dispelling that reliance.

The facts of this case are more compelling than Schwartz.
As in Schwartz, this firm “never directly told” Ohnmacht that
representation was limited to the first phase of the worker’s
compensation litigation -- that is, not until February 13, 1998,
Pa 89, 9 5; accord (1T:53-6 to 53-11) . While Tashjy certified
that reopening a claim does not require the participation of the

attorney who handled the original claim, Pa 89, 1 6, this fact -

was not communicated to Detzctive Ohnmacht. He is a detective,
not a lawyer; he does not practice worker’s compensation law.
; Ohnmacht and Tashjy discussed the possibility of a re- ’
‘ opener immediately upon settlement of the original claim. Pa
17, Y512 The nexus between the original proceeding and the
reopening of the award thus was made apparent. Ohnmacht viewed | a
retaining a new attorney to reopen the claim as “switch[ing]
] lawyers”; he assumed the firm, which handled the “initial phase” - -
i e of the claim, would “continue” and handle the re-opener. Pa 52,

1 3; Pa 17, 1 12. Ohnmacht’s assumption was not unreasonable,

j 20 ki
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because reopening a worker’s compensation award necessarily
involves review of the original award, thus, necessarily is
intertwined with the prior litigation. N.J.S.A. 34:15-27;

Yeomans v. Je.sey City, 27 N.J. 496, 507-08 (1958) ; Hopler v.

Hill City Coal & Lumber Co., 5 N.J. 466, 471 (1950). ¢ & A i

entirely reasonable for a non-lawyer/client to believe his
attorney is going to handle to completion (what inherently
appears to be) a single, ongoing matter. The simple fact is the
firm never explained or indicated to Ohnmacht anything to the
contrary. It never “directly told him” that its representation
of him ceased upon settlement of the first phase of the

litigation. Compare Matter of Schwartz, supra, 99 N.J. at 517

wich Pa 89, ¢ 5. Consequently, Ohnmacht had every intention to
pursue his re-opener opportunity and, up un;il February 13,

‘8, he believed the firm was representing him in this regard.
Pai:17;:94:12.

Furthermore, up through February 13, 1998, the firm
affirmatively impressed upon Ohnmacht that representation was
ongoing and the firm would assist him in filing the reopener
claim: See Pa 20 (instructing Ohnmacht to fill out requisite
re-opener forms and “return Same to me”); Pa 22-23 (offering to

meet at headfuarters to discuss reopening the claim) . The

letter most probative in this regard:

21




Please contact my office and advise me
specifically the complaints you have with
regard to your leg and your neck. As you
will recall, when we originally settled this
matter, we reserved the right to reopen this
claim, but we must indicate to the Court how
your Irjuries have “worsened” since the date
of the last Order in this matter.

Pa 21 (emphasis added). The letter literally prosumes the
existence of a present, ongoing relationship. It encourages
that relationship. It incorporates personal information,

suggests the detective and firm are a team, and implies the
previous worker’s comp claim and the pending re-opener are a
single, ongoing proceeding. This correspondence places no
qualifications, conditicns, or limitations, express or implied,
upon present and ongoing representation.

Moreover, the October 13, January 6, and January 26 letters
weze precisely the sort of <ommunications in which a lawyer
“shall” engage with his client under RPC 1.4. That Rule states,
“A lawyer shall keep a client reasonably informed about the
status of a matter . . . [and] shall explain a matter to the

extent reasonably necessary to permit the client to make

informed decisions regarding the representation.” The
correspondence in this case did precisely this. It explained
the status of the worker’s compensation matter. Pa 19, 21. It

advised Ohnmacht to be cognizant of the deadline for reopening

the claim. Pa 19. It informed Ohnmacht of the type of
22
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information that would be required to bring the claim. Pa 21.
And, it unequivocally urged further communication with the firm
in order to file the reopener. Pa 20-23. The letters
communicated legal advice and they promised continued legal
assistance with respect to the pending re-opener claim. See In
re Makowski, 73 N.J. 265, 269 (1977) (“Whether or not a fee is

paid, one who assumes to give legal advice takes on the role of

an attorney”); accord State v. Morelli, 152 N.J. Super. 67, 74

(App. Div. 1977). Cornsistent with RPC 1.4, the letters treated

Ohnmacht as a client and fortified that an attorney-client
relationship indeed existed between Ohnmacht and the firm.!

As in Schwartz, this firm cannot avoid application of the
ethics rules, specifically RPC 1.7, by asserting it did not
think it presently was representing Detective Ohnmacht on

.oruary 4, 1998 when it accepted the Bruno retainer. Assuming
this were true (which, by all indications, it is not, see Pa 31-
32, 99 5-6; Pa 20-23), the firm did not communicate its private

thoughts to Detective Ohnmacht until February 13, 1998, Pa 89, %

! At one point at oral argument, the firm characterized
Detective Ohnmacht as “a former client that want[ed] to be a
future client.” (1T:30-25 to 31-1). It bears emphasizing the
series of letters Tashjy sent Ohnmacht cannot be deemed letters
to a future or “prospective client,” because they do not conform
to RPC 7.3(b) (S5).

23




S Prior to the 13th, the firm gave Ohnmacht every indication
reprasentation was ongoing. Ohnmacht reasonably relied on the
firm’s representations in this regard and, consequently,
experienced the betrayal coincident to violation of RPC 1.7 when
Bruno’s case was accepted on February 4, 1998 and Ohnmacht was
ousted on February 13, 1998. See Pa 4, 1 2.

Incidentally February 13, 1998 was the date the firm
“terminated” its relationship with the detective. The
relationship was not “terminated” on June 27, nor, as the
letters and certifications reflect, did it naturally end on June
27. 1In his certification, Tashjy candidly admitted the firm did
not terminate its efforts with respect to the re-opener until
after Bruno became a client and after the conflict became
apparent. Pa 31, 99 5-6.

Consider, for example, che September 23, 1997 letter that
advised the detective to sign three blank “applications for
Review or Modification of Formal Award” and resubmit them to the
firm. P& 20, Upon “termination” of a relationship, the
attorney is required to return papers and Property to the
client, not to continue collecting information from him. RPC
1.16(d). 1Indeed, Tashjy admitted that he “was attempting to get
information from Detective Ohnmacht to determine a basis for

filing a Reopener Petition,” Pa 31-32, 9 6, and that he

24
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continued taking such “affirmative action . . . on behalf of
Detective Ohnmacht” until February 13, 1998, Pa 31, q 5.
Similarly, the events of February 13 precisely match up
with the events that constitute “termination” of a
representation. February 13 marked the first time Ohnmacht ever
received “notice” the firm was not representing him on the
pending reopener. Compare RPC 1.16(d) with Pa 31, 9 5 and Pa
89, 9 5. It was on the 13th that Ohnmacht was given a list of
other attorneys to contact for assistance in reopening the
claim. Compare RPC 1.16(d) (requiring, upon termination,
facilitation of employ of otker counsel to protect client’s
interests) with Pa 31, 9 5 (certifying Tashjy provided Ohnmacht
with a list of other worker’s compensation attorneys on February
13, 1998). Compare also RPC 1.16(b) (allowing an attorney to

“"oithdraw” from representation so long as client’s interests are

, (not adversely affected) with (1T:23-5 to 23-10) (arguing that

termination on February 13 gave Ohnmacht “plenty of time” to
seek other counzel and protect his rights) All of the facts
surrounding the instant relationship between Ohnmacht and the
firm mark February 13 as the date representation was terminated.
The court below seemed to deem material to the
“representation” issue the fact that Ohnmacht did not respond to

the firm’s letter: prior to February 13. (2T:5-8 to 5-13; :8-22
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to 9-1). This was wrong for two reasons.

First, attaching significance to whether Ohnmacht responded
to the letters presumes representation terminated in June 1997,
i.e., on the date of settlement. This follows because, only if
representation had terminated would formation of a “second”
relationship require Ohnmacht (again) to manifest his intent
that the firm provide him legal services, and thereby initiate

another “consensual” attorney-client relationship. Herbert v.

Haytaian, supra, 292 N.J. Super. at 436-37 (citing The

Restatement of the L:w Governing Lawyers (Proposed Final Draft

No. 1.) § 26 (1996)). As discussed above, the relationship
between the firm and Ohnmacht was ongoing; it did not end in
June 1997. The firm never limited the scope of representation,
and in fact, by its conduct, maintained, encouraged, and
fortified a present attorney-client relationship by representing
2 relationship was ongoing. The firm terminated the
relationship on February 13, 1998. Pa 31, 9 5; Pa 89, 91 5. It
was unnecessary that Ohnmacht resbond to the letters to trigger
a(nothe:) attorney-client relationship, because the one evolving
from litigation of the worker’s comp claim was not limited in
scope, nor was it terminated prior to February 13.
Second, and consistent with the foregoing, the court failed

’ to recognize that the firm itself advised Ohnmacht that his
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opportunity to re-open the claim would not expire until "“two
years Irom the date you receive your last disability benefit.”
Pa 19. The claim only settled in June 1997. Pa 30-31, 1 4.
According to his lawyers’ advice, therefore, Ohnmacht knew, as
of February 1998, that he had more than enough time to re-open
the claim. Ohnmacht’s lack of immediate response cannot be
indicative of any delinquency or disinterest on his part,
because 1t was consistent with his own lawyer’s advice.
Moreover, Ohnmacht did want to pursue the claim, he communicated
his desire to Tashjy on February 13 -- shortly after he received
the last letter -- and only at that time was he abandoned by the
firm. Pa 17, % 12; Pa 31, 9% 5. Reasonably believing he was
engaged in a present and ongoing relationship with Tashjy,
Ohnmacht acted in consideration of the 1legal advice in the
Letters that describea the time requirements governing his
claim, confident he presently had an attorney and his legal
interests were secured. See Pa 4, ¥ 2; Pa 17, 1 12.

Application of Schwartz, RPC 1.2, RPC 1.4, RPC 1.16(d), ABA

Model Rules of Professional Conduct, R. 1.3 comment (1989), and

all of the Supreme Court precedent defining the concept of
“representation” render Detective Ohnmacht a present client up
through and until February 13, 1998. Considering the nature of

the relationship between Ohnmacht and the firm, the
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communications between them, and the reasonable reliance

engendered as a result thereof, see In the Matter of Berkowitz,

supra, 136 N.J. at 144-45; Matter of Schwartz, supra, 99 N.J. at

514-16; In the Matter of Garber, supra, 95 N.J. at 605-06; In re i
Netchert, supra, 78 N.J. at 453, the conclusion is compelled

that the firm was engaged in a present relationship with

-

Ohnmacht on February 4, 1998 when it accepted Bruno’s case. The
firm therefore accepted the Bruno retainer contrary to RPC

1.7(a) and should be disqualified from further representation.

e ——

The facts of Manior-Electroalloys Corp. v. Amalloy Corp.,

711 F. Supp. 188 (D.N.J. 1989), are materially analogous to the
ones presented here, and the same result should obtain. In

Manior-Electroalloys, the firm of Hannoch Weisman represented a

client, Carmelo Iacono, in several personal matters. These

included the drafting of his and his wife’s wills and
establishment of a trust for the couple’s children (1976), and
the rendering of legal advice in connection with provisions of
an employment contract Iacono was negotiating (1983-84). 711 F.

Supp. at 190.

In 1983, one of the members of Hannoch wrote Iacono a k-

letter informing him of recent changes in the tax laws and :
suggesting that Iacono contact him to update his will. Iacono

did not respond to this letter. On July 22, 1988, however,

| -




Iacono visited the firm office and discussed the possibility of
updating his will. Noting that Iacono never responded to the
firm’s letters, the Hannoch attorney nevertheless indicated that
updating the will would be “a good idea.” The discussion ended
“without either party making a commitment to get back to the
other.” 1Id. at 190.

Meanwhile in 1986-1988, several corporations were

negotiatinjy the sale of certain assets of a foundry in Ohio.

e T

Id. at 189. Iacono was the president of one of these

corporations and eventually became one of the plaintiffs in

litigation that evolved from the negotiated sale. Id. Hannoch |
Weisman was representing one of the defendant companies in the i
same matter. On November 23, 1988, the defendants filed an
answer and a thirteen-count counterclaim charging the plaintiffs
w = fraud connected to the asset purchase agreement. The

5 { third-party complaint was served on Iacono on December 2, 1988.
Id. at 19.

Also on Pzccmber 2, Hannoch sent a letter to Iacono and his

wife, suggesting they call Hannoch to arrange a meeting to
discuss changes in the laws and the impact on Iacono’s
retirement benefits. Id. The letter noted the changes in the
tax laws and concluded,

This su'ject must be dealt with before year l
end. Thus, you should accumulate the

29
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appropriate information as soon as possible

so we have sufficient time to properly deal

with this important matter.
Id. at 191. On December 8, 1988, Iacono contacted the firm to
reiterate his desire to update his will. Several days later,
the firm iud’cated to Iacono that it could not provide him
further services due to its involvement in the other litigation.
Id.

On March 15, 1989, the plaintiffs filed a motion seeking
disqualification of the Hannoch firm from representing the
defendants in the asrcet purchase litigation, on the ground that
said representation presented a conflict of interest. Id. at
192, The United States District Court agreed and disqualified

the firm under Model Rule 1.7.

The analysis in Manoir-Electroalloys is particular apposite

here, because the court had to address the threashold issue of

ether ITacono was a present versus a former client of the
Hannoch firm at the time the third-party complaint was filed.
Id. at 193. As a preliminary step toward resolving this issue,
the conrt established,

The fact that Iacono was told [on December
8, 1988] that Hannoch could not represent
him . . . does not convert Iacono into a
former client, and I do not understand
Hannoch to so argue. Certainly a firm may
not circumvent Model Rule 1.7 by dropping
present client or characterizing him as

former client in order to take on

30
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conflicting and, quite possibly, more

lucrative client. Were it otherwise, both
the duty of undivided loyalty to the client
and public confidence in attorneys and the
legal system would be undermined.

Id. at 193 n.7 (emphasis added) (citing Picker Int’l, Inc. v.

Varian Assoc, Inc., 670 F. Supp. 1363 (N.D. Ohio 1987), aff’d,

869 F.2d 568 (Fed. Cir. 1989); Ettinger v. Cranberry Hill Corp.,

665 F. Supp. 368 (M.D. Pa. 1986); Harte Biltmore Ltd. v. First

Pennsylvania Ban’, 655 F. Supp. 419 (S.D. Fla. 1987)).

Application of the court’s reasoning to the instant case

means that Tashjy’s rejection of Ohnmacht on February 13, 1998
did not convert Ohnmacht to a “former client” for purposes of
RPC 1.7 versus 1.9 applicability. Rather, if Ohnmacht was a
present client as of the time the firm accepted the retainer
from Bruno, then the firm violated RPC 1.7 and must be
disqualified.

In arguing that iaconc was merely a former client, Hannoch
a3certed that “the last time the firm performed legal services
for Iacono was in 1983-1984, when it undertook the ‘limited’
task of issuing a legal opinion in connection with the
renegotiation of Iacono’s employment contract.” 711 F. Supp. at

1934 Moreover, Hannoch contended, the letters it sent Iacono
merely were “standard law firm follow-up letters” or “standard

form letters,” and thus should be characterized as letters “to a
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former client.” 1Id.

The Manoir-Electroalloys Court disagreed and viewed the

letters as proving that Hannoch “believed that a continuous

relationship existed, and, in fact, encouraged that
S | relationship.” Id. at 194. The court rejected the urged “form
letter” characterization, appreciating that the letters (1)
personally addressed Iacono and were personally sigi..ed by one of
the firm’s membe s, and (2) urged Iacono to “prepare materials

“

and get in touch” with the firm so that “we” could deal with the
“important matter.” The court rejected the urged “former”
status of Iacono, noting the communication to Iacono was made
recently -- at the same time the third-party complaint

pertaining to the other matter was filed. 1Id.

The Manoir-Electroalloys analysis compels the same result

here. First, note that, unlike Manoir-Electroalloys where the

€irm reviewed an employment contract four years earlier for
- | Iacono, the firm here handled Ohnmacht’s worker’s compensation
j claim a mere seven months earlier and treated the matter as

continuing. Moreover, unlike Manoir-Electroalloys, the June

1997 litigation and the pending reopener substantively were

interrelated. Reopening a worker’s compensation award
necessarily involves review of the original award, thus, 7
K ’, necessarily is intertwined with the prior litigation. | & =
32




Like Manoir—Elechoalloys, the letters mailed to Ohnmacht

were sent right up until the time the conflict with Bruno
Pra2sented itself. The murder occurred on January 18, Pa 15, ¢
2; the last letter is dated January 26, Pa 23; and, the Bruno
family retained the firm on February 4, pa 27, § 20. Also like

Manoir-Electroalloys, the correspondence mailed to Ohnmacht

cannot be characterized merely as “form letters” or “good
business lette:s.” Compare (1T:8-18; 2T:20-9 to 20-12; :20-20
to 21-13). The letters were repetitive, four within four
months’ time. Pa 20-23. Tashjy personally addressed Ohnmacht
and personally signed the communications. Id. Indeed, Tashjy
even personally extended himself to come down to headquarters to
discuss the pending re-opener. Ppa 22 & 23,

Additionally, the letters repeatedly urged Ohnmacht to get
in touch with the firm with the relevant factual énformation
because “we reserveg” the right to reopen this claim and “we
must indicate to the court how your injuries have worsened. Pa
21; compare RPC 1.2. The letters advised Ohnmacht with respect
to the pending legal matter, the information that would be
required, and the time restraints that applied. Pa 19, 21;
Compare RPC 1.4. Tashjy admits he affirmatively urged handling
the re-opener up through and until February 13, 1998, i.e.,

until the time he Yearned of the conflict introduced by Bruno.
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Pa 31, 91 5; compare RPC 1.2; RPC 1.16(d). Inescapably, the

letters reflect that the firm itself “believed that a continuous

relationship existed, and, in fact, encouraged that
relationship.” Manoir-Electroalloys, supra, 711 F. Supp. at
194.

In finding a continuing relationship, the Manoir-
Electroalloys cour also recognized that Hannoch’s relationship
with Iacono dated back to 1976 and the firm provided Iacono
legal services “whenever required.” Based upon this
recognition, and its appreciation of the letters, the court held
that Iacono was a present client at the time the third-party
complaint was filed. The court stated, “the mere fortuity that
[Iacono] did not require more extensive or frequent services
than he did cannot be the escape hatch Hannoch would have it
“e.” 711 F. Supp. at 194.

In this case, Ohnmacht has had a relationship with the firm
since 1992, when he retained the firm to defend him against the
civil rights complaint. 1In the last six years, Ohnmacht has had
the firm represent his interests on two entirely independent
matters, Pa 36, 99 4 & 7, one of which has (up until February
13, 1998) consistently been treated as continuing, Pa 31-32, 99
5-6; Pa 89, 91 5. Ohnmacht perceived the members of the firm as

“his lawyers,” Pa 17, 1 12, and the letters Tashjy sent Ohnmacht
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supported the reasonableness of this belief. Like Hannoch, the
firm here should not be permitted to rely on the fortuity that
Ohnmacht did not require more frequent services, or that the
timeframe governing the re-opener did not require Ohnmacht to
react sooner.

In the context of attorney ethics, the Supreme Court has
characterized its ‘overriding concern” as “maintaining public
confideice in the integrity of the legal profession.” Inquiry

on_Index No. 58-9(b), 130 N.J. 431 (1992); sState v. Galati, 64

N.J. 572, 576-77 (1974). Likewise, the Court has recogonized

that “[o]lne of the most basic responsibilities incumbent on a
lawyer is the duty of loyalty to his or her clients.” In re

Opinion No. 653, 132 N.J. 124, 129 (1993); accord In re Dolan,

76 N.J. 1, 9 (1978) (describing the duty owed by an attorney to
his client as “complate and undivided loyalty”); Bartels v.
Romano, 171 N.J. Super. 23, 29 (App. Div. 1979) (“an attorney
owes his client an unswerving allegiance.”).

“Both the duty of undivided loyalty to the client and
public confidence in attorneys and the legal system [are]
undermined,” when a firm is permitted to “drop{] a present
client or characteriz([e] him as a former client in order to take
on a conflicting and, quite possibly, more lucrative client.”

Manior-Electroalloys Corp v. Amalloy Corp., supra, 711 F. Supp.
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The trial court’s order poses precisely this threat to the
public confidence in both individual attorneys and the legal
profession as a whole. The clear message conveyed is that a
lawyer will establish, then go to all lengths to facilitate, a
relationship until a more lucrative opportunity arises, at which
time the attorney’s allegiance will shift 180 degrees --
regardless of whether the object of the initially sought
representation was achieved.

Most illuminating is the firm’s description of how it
viewed the “duty of loyalty” owed Detective Ohnmacht:

Now comes this moiion, where the application
is made, well, Judge, a police officer, who
had a Worker’s Compensation case on one side
of the balance wants to come in here and
dictate to the Court and to the law firm how
the firm should ethically discharge its

duties and to step aside on a murder case
where somebody i~ on trial for their life,

for the sake of a reopener on a Worker’s
Compensation case. That’s where the balance

is here, Judge.

* ok ok

He was told we’ll give you a reference. We
Caii give you two, three, four different
attorneys who can go and handle your rather
routine reopener case and protect your
rights. But you, Detective Ohnmacht, have
no legal right to dictate how we are to
discharge our ethical responsibilities.

(1T:19-14 to 19-22; :23-8 to 23-12) (emphasis added); see also

(1T:40-11 to 40-15). The “undivided loyalty” owed a client is
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: not proportional to the relative importance or triviality of the
; client’s case. Likewise, the duty of loyalty does not permit
abandonment of one client to take on another conflicting .

rfepresentation because the latter seems more important or
. interesting, affords a firm greater notoriety, or promises to be
more financially lucrative. The sliding-scale approach to
attorney-client loyalty the firm applied to legitimize ousting
Detect.ve Ohnmacht flatly undermines both the letter and spirit
of RPC 1.7(a).

The State respectfully requests that the trial court’s
order sanctioning the firm’s continued representation of Bruno
be reversed and the firm be disqualified from any further

participation in the matter of State v. Bruno.




EQINT II

THE FIRM SHOULD BE DISQUALIFIED
BECAUSE REPRESENTATION OF BRUNO
CREATES AN APPEARANCE OF
IMPROPRIETY

The State can find no rational basis for the trial court’s
decision not to disqualify the firm in light of the
impermissible appearance of impropriety continued representation
presents.

New Jersey law imposes upon attorneys the duty to avoid

even the appearance of impropriety. Petition for Review of

Opinion No 569, 103 N.J. 325, 329 & n.4 (1986). “The appearance
doctrine is intended not to prevent any actual conflicts of
interest but to bolster the public’s confidence in the integrity
cf the legal profession.” Id. at 330 (citing In re Cipriano, 68

N.J. 398 (1975) and In re Opinion No. 415, 81 N.J. 318, 323

(1979)).
The dispr=itive test is whether an informed and concerned
private citizen could reasonably find an appearance of

impropriety in the subject representation. Inquiry to Advisory

Committee on Prof. Ethics Index No. 58-91(b), 130 N.J. 431, 433

(1992); In re Opinion No. 415, supra, 81 N.J. at 325. The test

L
recognizes tha*t ‘“appearances too are a matter of ethical
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concern, for the public has an interest in the repute of the

legal profession.” State v. Needham, 298 N.J. Super. 100, 104

(Law Div. 1996) (quoting In re Abrams, 56 N.J. 271, 277 (1970)).

There are several New Jersey decisions that were binding on
the trial court, which it unjustifiably did not follow. These
decisions recognize that an attorney who represents a police
officer, even on an unrelated matter, cannot subsequently
represent a criminal defendant at a trial where the police
officer will serve as the State’s key witness.

In State v. Needham, supra, the trial court held that

representation of a criminal defendant by an attorney who
formerly represented the State’s police-officer-witness would
impermissibly create an appearance of impropriety. 298 N.J.
Super. at 102. The facts were such that (1) the attorney
represented the police-officer-witness “on an entirely unrelated
matter,” id. at 102 (emphasis  added); and, (2) the
representation of the officer occurred “during the very same
time period that the criminal charges arose,” id. at 103.

The court stated, “[wlhen an attorney’s former client is
the State’s chief witness, it is beyond dispute that an
appearance of impropriety is created, requiring the attorney be
disqualified.” Id. In support of this conclusion, the court

Ld
identified the following appearances such representation would
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present: (1) that the witness might unfairly have aided
defendant; (2) that defense counsel might not have cross-
examined his former client as vigor&usly; and, (3) that the
attorney will wuse confidential information from the prior
relationship to cross-examine the witness. Id. at 104-07.

Needham clearly applies to require disqualiiication of the
firm from representing Bruno in the pending criminal proceeding.
The firm has served as counsel for Ohnmacht on two separate
matters. The time period of the secona representation
overlapped with the firm’s acceptance of Bruno’s case. The last
letter to Ohnmacht from the firm was dated January 26, 1998. Pa
23. The homicide occurred on January 18, 1998. Pa 15, $-2:
Thus, the firm’s relationship with Ohnmacht extended up through
“the very same time period that the criminal charges arose.”
The statuses of the parties in this case are materiall_
identical to the ones present in Needham.

Accordingly, as in Needham, a private citizen reasonably
apprised of the facts might very well find an appearance of
impropriety by opining: (1) Ohnmacht might hold back with his
own testimony in deference to his lawyer-adversary; (2) defense
counsel might not cross-examine Ohnmacht as vigorously; and/or,
(3) the firm will use facts conveyed in confidence per its

relationship with Ohnmacht to cross-examine him.
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The triax court below tried to distinguish Needham on
Several grounds. First, the court found material that the prior
:epresentation involved a defense against g Criminal matter,
(2T:7-20 to 7-24; 19-15 to 24) . On this ground, the court
reasoned that “one could easily conclude that certain
confidentia] information Passed between attorney ang client
which woulg have jeopardizeqd the integrity of that police
officer as a chief witness jpn the Staters Criminal Case.”

(2T:7-24 ¢o 8-2).

flatly undermined by the Needham court’s opinion, The Needham

Opinion consistently emphas jzed that the Subject criminal Case

formerly I'epresented the police officer. 298 N.J. Super. at
101, 102-03, 106. If anything, the court underplayed the fact+
one of the Prior matters was c€riminal jp nature. The court’s
Teasoning was such that, “Regardless of what defense Counsel has
learned M Officer Warner, in a layman’s eyes, the man who
the defense Attorney once represented stands to be discredited,
on cross~examination, by his former attorney.~ Id. at 107

(quoting State v, Catanoso, Supra, 222 N.J. Super. at 648)
RS 2080

(emphagjis added) .
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Thus, contrary to the trial court’s conclusion, the Needham
court clearly did not think material the fact that the former
representation happened to be a criminal matter. Instead, the
court emphasized the improper appearance posed by the
representation. The Needham Court’s reasoning in this regard is
consistent with New Jersey law. State v. Galati, sipra, 64 N.J.

at 576-78; State v. Catanoso, supra, 222 N.J. Super. at 647-48

(“Even if no actual conflizt or attributed conflict existed in
this matter, [counsel] must be disqualified because the
appearance of impropriety is created by his representation of
his former client who is now the State’s chief witness.”);

Opinion 84 (1965); see also State v. Needham, supra, 298 N.J.

Super. at 105 (citing applicable ethics opinions).

The trial court also stated that, unlike Needham, there was
“no indication here that JUunmacht w[ould] be the State’s key
witness.” (2T:9-8 - to 9-9). Plainly, this is wrong. In his
affidavit in support of the motion, Ohnmacht indicated he was
“designated by the Middletown Police Department to serve as lead
detective in connection with the investigation,” he‘ had taken
“approximately 20 formal written statements” and “served as the
affiant for several sean‘:h warrants.” Pa 15, 99 3, 4. Ohnmacht
witnessed the only statement given by defendant Bruno. Ohnmacht

absolutely will be a key police witness in the pending Bruno
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trial. See (1T:5-18 to 6-11; :37-1 to 37-4).

Finally, the court sought to distinguish Needham by
indicating Bruno’s case might expose him to the death penalty.
(2T:9-25 to 10-5). Actually, it has been decided that Bruno
will not be tried for capital murder. Even if this were a
capital matter though, this would not mean that Bruno’s choice

of counsel trumps the rules of ethics. Dewey v. R.J. Reynolds

Tobacco Co., 109 N.J. 201, 218 (1988); State v. Needham, supra,

298 N.J. Super. at 103 (citing State v. Lucarello, 135 N.J.

Super. 347, 353 (Arp. Div.), aff’d o.b., 69 N.J. 31 (1979));

State v. Catanoso, supra, 222 N.J. Super. at 644.

In all material respects, Needham is indistinguishable from
the instant case, and the firm’s disqualification should have
peen ordered. In addition to relying upon Needham, the State

argued below that application of Opinion 404, 102 N.J.L.J. 205

(1978), required disqualification. The trial court did not even
address Oéilnion 404 or attempt to explain why it did not apply.
In Opinion 404, the Ethics Committee determined it was
ethically improper for an attorney to represent a defendant in
municipal court, where the complaining witness would be a police
officer whom the attorney represented two other times on
unrelated matters. The Committee analogized Opinion 113, 90

N.J.L.J. 473 (1967), and reasoned that its rationale “applies
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with equal, if not greater, force to this situation where the
attorney in question, which not representing the P.B.A., has
specifically represented the complaining witness.”®

In this case, this firm has “specifically” represented
Ohnmacht on two prior matters, both work-related, and one whose
status was treated as continuing up through the time Bruno was
accepted as a client. In representing Bruno, the firm will be
required to cross-examine Ohnmacht, attack his credibility, and
question his investigative competency and technique. All of the

Needham and Opinion .04 factors deemed to give rise to conflict

and an untoward appearance are implicated.

. The Supreme Court has stated that, so long as there is an
“adequate factual basis” for an informed citizen to conclude
there would be a “high risk” of impropriety, then the lawyer

must be disqualified. Matter of Petition for Review of Opinion

> The Committee also noted the attorney represented five other

police officers in various matters. In the instant case, the
State, “upon information and belief,” certified that the firm
has represented numerous Middletown police officers in the past,
some of whom may be witnesses in this case. Pa 5-6, 1 10; see
generally Pa 57-71. To substantiate its belief, the Stat

requested that the firm submit a list of police officers it
currently or formerly represented. Pa 6, 9 11. The firm denied
it represented the PBA, Pa 37, 99 12 & 13, but never denied it
represefited numerous Middletown officers. See Pa 27, 1 25. The
court never ordered the firm to produce the list; indeed, it
never even addressed the State’s point in this regard.
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No. 569, supra, 103 N.J. at 331; see also State v. Catanoso,

supra, 222 N.J. Super. at 648. Moreover, if there is any doubt
as to the propriety of an attorney’s representation of a client,
“such doubt must be resolved in favor of disqualification.”

Reardon v. Marlayne, Inc., 83 N.J. 460, 471 (1980); compare

(2T:10-8 to 10-16) (recognizing that “reasonable minds” could
differ as to whether an appearance of impropriety was posed, but
concluding that the court’s “reasonable mind” discerned no
conflict).

In this case, the "“factual basis” derives not from the
particulars of precisely what Ohnmacht disclosed in the course
of his six-year long relat.onship with the firm and how such
details might specifically be utilized on cross-examination in
che pending trial. Ohnmacht undoubtedly did disclose .an
“infinite number of confidences” to the firm during his tenure
as a client, but this misses the heart of the matter. The
“factual basis” requiring disqualification in this case derives
from Ohnmacht’s status as a present/very-recently-former client
of the firm, his status as a police officer, his status as a
critical prosecutioh witness in the Bruno matter, and the firm’s
current status as Bruno’s advocate and the State’s adversary.

There are too many ‘opinions finding an appearance of

impropriety in cases with postures analogous to this one. The
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trial court was insensitive to the precedent and its

o applicability to the facts of this case. The conclusion is

4 compelled that continued repfesentation of Bruno by the firm | EUR
creates a very real appearance of impropriety.

4 f The State respectfully requests this Court reverse the

1 trial court’s order permitting the firm to continue representing

defendant Bruno in the pending criminal trial.
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i CONCLUSION
For the foregoing reasons and authorities cited in support s
: thereof, the State respectfully requests this Court reverse the
e order deny.irj disqualification of the firm from continued
representation of defendant Gregory Bruno in the matter of State
Sw
v. Bruno.
Respectfully submitted,
JOHN KAYE
MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR !
Me. o
By: Mary\H. J ano ’
i Assistant Prosecutor {
Of Counsel and \
On the Letter Brief
4PS/mrj/vlr £ :
03/19/99 i %
cc  Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. ! -
Edward C. Bertucio, Esq. i
o 4 ~
1
//‘
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DQCKET NO. A-3215-98T5
CASE NO. 98-0489

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, H

Plaintiff—Appellant, : CRIMINAL ACTION
——=—="au aAClION

H v. $ ON APPEAL FROM AN ORDER
§ DENYING DISQUALIFICATION OF
i GREGORY S. BRUNO, 3 COUNSEL FROM CONTINUED REPRE~ ]
: SENTATION OF DEFENDANT IN THE
Defendant-Respondent. e SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
MONMOUTH COUNTY

{ SAT BELOW: Honorable James A. KENNEDY, J.S.cC. |
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ORIGINAL FILED
MO

NMOUTIH COUNTY

JUL 161998
WLLIAM W. CARPENTER
Deputy Clerk
| Supenor Court
JOHN KAYE
MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR
COURT HOUSE

FREEHOLD, NEW JERSEY 07728-1261
(732; 431-7160

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY

LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
CASE NO. 98-00489
WARRANT COMPLAINTS
1998-000043-1331 & 1998-000044-1331
STATE OF NEW JERSEY
Plaintiff, : CRIMINAL ACTION
v. : NOTICE OF MOTION TO . i
DISQUALIFY COUNSEL =
GREGORY S. BRUNO 4
Defendant.
TO: Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq.

GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA
125 Half Mile Road, P.O. Box 190 125 Half Mile Road, P.O. Box 190
Middletown, New Jersey 07748 Middletown, New Jersey 07748

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Friday, August 7, 1998, at 9:00 in the forenoon

or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, the undersigned will make an application

Pa 1 e
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before the Honorablg John A. Ricciardi, P.J. Cr., for an order disqualifying the law firm

of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla or any of its individual attorneys from representing the
defendant.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the undersigned will rely upon the
attached affidav t, certification and brief submitted herewith as well as oral argument.
Pursuant to Rule 1:6-2, a proposed form of order is enclosed herewith.

Respectfully submitted,

JOHN KAYE
MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR

// (/‘
By: Peter E. Warshaw, Jr.
Assistant Prosecutor

I hereby certify that copies of the within notice of mo icn and proposed order w..c
served upon defense counsel by depositing same in a regular U.S. mailbox in Freehold,

New Jersey on July 16, 1998.

Peter E. Warshaw, Jr.
Assistant Prosecutor




JOHN KAYE .

MONMOUTH COUN™Y PROSECUTOR
COURT HOUSE

FREEHOLD, NEW JERSEY 07728-1261
(732) 431-7160

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)

CASE NO. 98-00489

WARRANT COMPLAINTS
1998-000043-1331 & 1998-000044-1331

STATE OF NEW JERSEY : CRIMINAL ACTION

Plaintiff,
CERTIFICATION IN SUPPORT OF
V. : MOTION SEEKING TO DISQUALIFY
COUNSEL
GREGORY S. BRUNO

Defendant.

I, PETERE. WARSHAW, JR., hereby certify that the following facts are true
to the best of my knowledge:

S
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. Iam an Assistant Monmouth County Prosecutor in which capacity I have
been assigned to prosecute the within matter which is pending grand jury. Assuch, I:m
fully familiar with the facts I now relate.

2. In late February or early March of 1998, I was contacted by Detective
Ronald D. Ohnmacht of the Middletown Township Police Department. Detective
Ohnmacht advised me that he had been told that Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. of the law firm
of -Giordano, Hallera.. & Ciesla would be representing the defendant in the above-
captioned matter. Detective Ohnmacht indicated to me that he was extremely
uncomfortable with this because he had been previously represented by the Giordano firm
in a civil rights action in which he was a defendant and was currently represented by the
Giordano firm in 4 worker's compensation matter. Detective Ohnmackt asked me about
the propriety of this concurrent representation.

3. I conducted legal research and located the law which is contained in the
attached brief. In my mind, this raised a legitimate legal question as to whether the
Giordano firm could represent the defendant.

4, I advised Detective Ohnmacht that I had not received any communication
from the Giordano firm indicating that they represented the defendant but would deal with
the issue if, and when, I received such communication.

s. I April 1998, I was speaking to Edward C. Bertucio, Ir., Esq. about an

unrelated matter. I advised Mr. Bertucio that I had heard that his firm was going to be
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representing the defendant and asked whether that was so. Mr. Bertucio indicated that a
substitution of attorney form had been filed with the Court and the Giordano firm would
in fact be representing the defendant. Subsequently, I received a letter from Mr. Bertucio
dated April 14, 1998, a copy of which is attached verifying their representation of the
defendant. (See Appendix A)

6. Subsequent to my receiving this letter, I contacted Mr. Hobbie directly and 1

discussed the issue as to whether a conflict existed directly with him. Mr. Hobbie
indicated that he would take my concerns under advisement, discuss them with the
defendant and advise me as to his position.

r Subsequently, I forwarded a letter dated May 6, 1998 to Mr. Hobbie. A
copy of this letter is attached. (See Appendix B)

8.  OnMay 11, 1998, I received a reply from Mr. Berwcio indicating that the
Giordano firm would not be removing itself as counsel in this matter. (See Appendix C) &

9. By filing this motion, I am not in any way asserting, directly or indirectly,

|
L ] “
! that Mr. Hobbie or Mr. Bertucio have deliberately committed an ethics violation. To the

{
i

contrary, I have known and respected both attorneys for many years. This is very simply
a question of law.

10.  Upon information and belief, I assert that Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla has
represented numerous Middletown Township police officers in the past, some of whom

may be witnesses in this case. [ respectfully request that the Court order Giordano,
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Halleran & Ciesla to submit, under seal if necessary, a list of Middletown police officers
the firm has represented or is now representing.

11. Talso respectfully request that the Court consider ordering this hearing to be
testimonial in nature if deemed necessary.

12.  Icertify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. Iam aware that
if any of the foregoirg statements made by me are willfully false, I am subject to

punishment.

g e <~ 7

Peter E. Warshaw, Jr.

—

Dated: "Jucr S 19%¢

Pa 6
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CiESLA R I i
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION so. H
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
128 HALF MILE ROAD i
POST OFFICE BOX 190 |
MIDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748 5 i 2
732} 741-3900 e e i
FAX: (732) 224-6599 Sovam o wriesa! | o
\7 441 CABTY STATE STRECTY A VELINE DECanLO ;
v TRENTON. NEW JERSEY OBG RS HEOLE DEvanEY
1909 898 - 3000 r
CVR TR aTTOSMEY
et Lot |
PLEASE REPLY TO MIDDLETOWN ‘ ~
P g — e e No. }
e e DIRECT DIAL NUMBE! i
ntx:rﬁizum. 11308/001 i
(732) 219-5484 .__4
| o g e i
April 14, 1998 E
|
Peter E. Warshaw, Assistant Prosecutor !
Monmouth County Prosecutor's Office i
East Wing, Court House [
Third Floor
Freehold, New Jersey 07728-1261 i
Re: State of New Jersey v. Gregory Bruno
{ Dear Assistant Prosecutor Warshaw: . Pl
i
i Pursuant to our telephone conversation of April 14, 1998, 4
«aclosed please find correspondence and a Substitution of -
‘orney in the above-captioned matter.
» i | Please adjust your records to indicate our appearance on ] S
13 this matter.
i
: Very truly yours,
GIORDANO, HALL! & CIESLA, C.
C.: §
Edward C. Bertgcio, Jr., Esq.
ECB/ job
Enclosures
3 cc: Criminal Case Management j ¥
Pa 7
q APPENDIX A ‘
n




GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
128 HALF MILE ROAD
POST OFFICE BOX 190
MIDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748
1732) 741-3900
FAX: (732) 2246599
441 EABY BTATE BYREEY

W JERSEY OBeRs
wom e98 - 3000

on
o] PLEASE REPLY TO: MIDDLETOWN

DIRECT DIAL NUNBER:

awoel
mavs T, €
STEVEN 4. BRCOMAN
—

counseL:
CLIZASETH CrniTian
BOBEAT €. Lo
SOanme

o. eaar (732)219-5484

o Teemas Saecie
S February 10, 1998

€. Sioncane
"8 1ne0

Criminal Division Manager
Monmouth County Superior Court
Monmouth County Court House

| - 71 Monument Park
Freehold, New Jersey 07728

Re: State of New Jersey v. Gregory Bruno
Indictment No,:

Dear Sir/Madam:

SEBRA 4. AUSENS YT
v

pees

4. 8COTY amsENsON

RIS 0. vimen,

CHARLES 4. CRAVEM

onveny
JAEOUELING DecanLo
™EOLE SEvaney

OomrrrEs ove. e, arvemay
¢ TENTPED Chmees. T & FrOmEy

FRE NO.

11308/001

Enclosed herein Please find an original and two copies of a
Substitution of Attorney with regard to the above-referenced
¢ -er. Kindly file said Substitution of Attorney with the Court
i and return a "filed" copy of same to attention at your earliest

. i convenience.

4 NMH /mem
p Enclosures

Should you have any questions or concerns with regard to the
enclosed, please do not hesitate to contact me.

¢c: Theodore V. Fishman, Office of the Public Defender
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.
Post Office Box 190

425 Half Mile Road

Middletown, New Jersey 07748
(908)741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY

MONMOUTH COUNTY

H
Flaintiffs, : LAW DIVISION - CRIMINAL PART
-ve=- : INDICTMENT NO.:
GREGORY BRUNO, : CRIMINAL ACTION
Defendant. : SUBSTITUTION OF ATTORNEY

The undersigned hereby consent to the substitution of

Norian M. Hobbie, Esq.

GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.
Post Office Box 190

Middletown, New Jersey 07748

as attorneys

e Defendant in the above~captioned matter.

. 1998

IE, ESQ. : .
Superseding Attorney Withdrawing Attorney




OFFICE OF THE CNHUNTY PROSECUTOR b
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH

)

SEcOND AssisTanT Prostcuron

WiLLiam D. Guioay
Dimecron or Taiaw Division

il ol §

S > 71 MONUMENT PARK :
e‘.;z—% : FREEHOLD. NEW JERSEY 07728.1261 !

<22 (908) 431.7160 ALTON D. Kenwev i

Fu 9 P g

JOHN KAavE FAX (908) 409-3673 "ST Assisrant Pacsecuron i
MoNMOUTH County Prostcuron FAX (908) 409-4830 RosERT A. Hownecken, Jn. |
i

H

|

WiLLiam P. Lucia
Critr oF InvesTiGaTions

May 6, 1998

Norman M. Hobbie, Esq.
GIORDANO, HALLERAN & ZIESLA
125 Half Mile Road, P.O. Box 190
Middletown, New Jersey 07748

Re:  State of New Jersey v. Gregory Bruno $

Dear Mr. Hobbie:

Attached herewith please find copies of letters dated June 26, 1997, September
29. 1997, October 13, 1997, January 6, 1998 and January 26, 1998, from M. Scout

The purpose of this letter is to advise you that Detective Ohnmacht
unequivoca'ly objects to your firm representing Bruno at the same time as it represents
him. It is my understanding that Detective Ohnmacht has verbally advised Mr. Tashjy

i of this fact. Though Mr. Tashjy is currently handling Detective Ohnmacht’s case, the
] detective advises me that he rewained your firm because of your personal reputation as
) well as the friendship you and he share.

Please review this letter with the abovi ioned defendant and advise me as to
your position as to whether a conflict of interest exists or whether there is an ;
appearance of improprietv. P‘leusebeadvisedlhaifyauﬂrmimendsmreminas

Pa 10
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| Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. 2 May 6, 1998
counsel to Defendant Bruno, this office will file a motion to determine whether a
conflict exists.

e | I can be (¢ ched directly at 577-6790 and look forward to hearing from you.
Very truly yours, X
JOHN KAYE
i MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR
| : 22N
| T S
| By: Peter E. Warshaw, Jr., tant Prosecutor
{ Director, Major Crimes Unit
PEW:pl
Enclosures

cc Detective First Class Ronald Ohnmacht
9 3

Pa 11
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW
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POST OFFICE BOX 190
MIDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748 2 8COTT AnoCASON
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!
i
1732) 741- 3900 . cenuen l
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FAX (732) 224-6599 S ¢

AmTA L CHAROEL AsE
PaTmICH 8 COmVERT
JACOUELINE DECARLO
44! CAST STATE STAEET COLE DEvANEY
TRENTON wEw JCRSCY OSS2S ! ~
WOt 968 SE00 O TwTED Cve, TR aTTORE Y i
& CINTIED G, A, AT TORSEY i

PLEASE REPLY TO: MIDDLETOWN iILE NO. L‘

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER:

11308/001 {
(732) 219-5484 —

May 11, 1998

Peter E. Warshaw, Assistant Prosecutor
Monmouth County Prosecutor's Office |
Monmouth County Court House .

East Wing, Third Floor :
71 Monument Park

Freehold, New Jersey 07728-1261

Re: State of New Jersey v. Gregory Brumo
Case No.: 08-004

Dear Mr. Warshaw:

1 This letter confirms our telephone conversation and receipt
! | of your letter dated May 7, 1998 to Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. of
{ this firm. At the outset, please note that we appreciate the
professional courtesy you extended when you dealt with this
matter by way of a personal telephone call.

We have received and considered your inquiry that a conflict
of interest may exist with this firm's representation of
Mr. Bruno in the above-referenced case.

Please be advised that your inquiry of conflict of interest ‘ .
has been discussed fully with our client, as well as his parents. ’
Both our client and his parents unequivocally have instructed us L~y
to remain as counsel in this case. =

You should also Yeé aware that some of the information oy
contained in your correspondence is inaccurate. For example, as
was discussed with you during our telephone conversationms,
Detective Ohnmacht s not a present client of this firm. His
worker's compensation case was closed in September of 1997.

%
|

APPENDIX C




|

X s e

GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CiesLa
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Peter E. Warshaw
May 11, 1998
Page 2

Significantly, neither Mr. Hobbie nor I have ever worked on
said matter on behalf of Det. Ohnmacht. His worker's
compensation case was handled solely by Scott Tashjy, Esq. of
this office.

Of interest, hovever, is that Gregory Bruno's parents have
indicated to me that they have a long-standing personal
friendship with Derective Ohnmacht. Detective Ohnmacht, despite
this relationship, was not removed from the investigation or
dissuaded from discharging his duty in a professional manner.
Nor did he cease to pursue the investigation due to his
friendship with the Brunc family.

As you are well aware, the discovery in this case has not

been disclosed to defense counsel. Nevertheless, during a recent

conversation you referred to this case as a "forensics" case.
Likewise, Det. Ohnmacht did not take an inculpatory statement
from Gregory Bruno. In fact, after one interview with

Det. Ohnmacht, Gregory was allowed to leave. Nor was

Det. Ohnmacht a witness to any of the alleged crimes.

As counsel for Gregory Bruno, this firm expects to zealously

and aggressively represent his interests. This firm does not
perceive any factor that will hamper or prevent us from
discharging our duties on behalf of this firm's client, Gregory
B I

Therefore, in view of the foregoing and with the client's

instructions, this firm will not remove itself as counsel in this

case.

Should you have any questions or comments with regard to the

foregoing, kindly contact me at your convenience.

Very truly yours

Edward C. Bertycio; Jr., Esq.
ECB/bme

cc: Gregory Bruno
Mr. and Mrs. xobert Bruno




JOHN KAYE

MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR

COURT HOUSE

FREEHOLD, NEW ERSEY 07728-1261

(908) 431-7160
SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
CASE NO.98-00489
WARRANT COMPLAINTS
1998-000043-1331 & 1998-000044-1331

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Plaintiff, : CRIMINAL ACTION
v.
AFFIDAVIT
GREGORY S. BRUNO,

Defendant.

I, RGNALD D. OHNMACHT, of full age, being duly sworn according to law,
upon my oath, depose and say:

1. I1am a Detective with the Middletown Township Police Departmentand have
been employed by that department for approximately 30 years. I have been assigned to

the Detective Bureau for approximately 26 consecutive years.

Pa 14




2
2 On January 18, 1998, Robert James Gelhaus, Jr., of 28B Bayview Avenue,

Keansburg was found dead by a Middletown police officer who was on routine patrol.
Mr. Gelhau:" body was found in a 1991 Mercury station wagon taxi cab which belong: d
to his employer at approximately 4:59 p.m. The taxi cab containing Mr. Gelhaus’ body
was located behind 2 commercial structure known as Crestview Pharmacy, Highway 35
No.th and Crestview Drive, Middletown. An autopsy has determined that the cause of
death was multiple sharp force ;muma from one or more knives, and the manner of death
was homicide.

3 I was designated by the Middletown Police Department to serve as lead
detective in connection with this investigation.

4. In that capacity, I conducted numerous witness interviews as well as an
interview of the defendant. I anticipate that my interview of the defendant will be subject
to a Miranda hearing. I participated in taking approximately 20 formal writien statements.
Additionally, I served as the affiant for several search warrants.

5. On February 1, 1998, the defendant was charged with murder and felony
murder on Warrant Complaint 1998-000043-1331 and armed robbery and possession of
a knife for an unlawful purpose on Warrant Complaint 1998-000044-1331.

6. The complainant was Detective Lieutenant Michael Rubino of the

Middletown Township Police Department.

Pa 15
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7: It is my understanding that the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, 125
Half Mile Road, Middletown has entered an appearance on behalf of the defendant. More
specifically, I understand that the defendant will be represented by Norman M. Hobbie,
Esq. and Edward C, Bertucio, Esq.

8. I'have been represented by the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla in
the past and am currently being represented by lhem.. When I learned that the Giordano
firm intended to represent the defendant, I communicated my objectionto M. Scott Tashjy,
Esq. who had been handling one of my matters. I was advised that Giordano, Halleran &
Ciesla intended to represent Mr. Bruno notwithstanding my objection. I communicated
my objection to the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office and requested that legal
research be conducted to determine the propriety of this.

9. I was initially representec by the Giordano firm in the civil action known -
mmmammmmmmmw The matter was venued in Federal
Court and had been assigned Docket No. 92-1712 (GEB). The case was assigned to the
Honorable Garrett E. Brown, Jr. In this matter [ was sued individually as well 2s in my
Status as a detective with the Middletown Township Police Department. There were also
numerous John and Jane Doe defendants and representatives of the Monmouth County
Prosecutor's Office were sued as well. In this civil rights action, the plaintiff alleged that
I had committed numerous sixth amendment violations in connection with several

interviews I conducted of him in July 1989.

Pa 16
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10. I retained the Giordano firm 1o represent my interests. | specifically went

to Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. because of his fine reputation as well as my personal

friendship wi. him. Though I can not articulate all the details, I do know that the case

against me was ultimately dismissed.

11. Subs~quently, I suffered an injury at Middletown Township Police

Headguarters, | pursued a worke:'s compensation case and was again represented by the

Giordano firm. My initial contact was with Mr. Hobbie who referred me to Mr. Tashjy.

I'again retained the Giordano firm because of my friendship with Mr. Hobbje as well as

his reputation.

12.  The initial phase of the worker's compensation claim was, resolved in or

around June 1997. At the time that this was resolved, I discussed with M. Tashjy the

possibility of filing what I nnderstand to be called a re-opener claim. I believe that | an.

currently represented by the Giordano firm and wish to pursue the reopener claim.

However, on July 14, 1998, 1 spoke to Mr. Tashjy and he advised me that he did not
represent me.

13.  Autached herewith Please find copies of letters I received from Mr. Tashjy

dated June 26, 1997, September 29, 1997, October 13, 1997, January 6, 1908 and January
26, 1998. (See Appendix A-1 through A-5)
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14. T unequivocally object to the Giordano firm representing myself and the
defendant in t*is matter simultaneously. I was never asked to consent to this joint

representation but, on my own initiative, I advised Mr. Tashjy that I object.

{ ) Ronald D. Ohnmzcht

Sworn and subscrib&d to
{ before me this /¢ 7 day
i of July, 1998.

TS (]

Peter E. WarshawJT.
Attorney at Law,-State of New Jersey

Pa 18
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CiesLa i
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION !
ATTORNEYS AT LAwW ¥
128 MALF MiLC ROAC i
POST OFF.CC 80« 19C
MIDOLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748 ’
17321 7413900
FAX: 1732) 2246599 {
CAICART STATE BTACE: ;’
TRENTON “Cw .amsgr LLLTE )
O™ a9% 3000 !
PLEASE AEPLY TO: MIOOLETOWN !
— FATASE 5. ComvEns i
DIRECT D1AL NUMSER L‘
(908) 219-5484 ottt Lo 38 i
) i
9112/377
June 26, 1997 f
Mr. Ronald Ohnmacht
i
Re: Ohnmacht v, Township of Middletown b
Dear Mr. Ohnmacht: i
P -
It was a pleasure meeting with you recently with regasd to t
resolution of your Workers' Compensation claim. I would like to
take this opportunity ‘to thaax you for 2xpressing confidence in | A
Sur firm, and it was a pleasure for me to handle your claim. As [
~8 discussed during our last meeting, you have two years from the
date you receive your last disability benefit to reopen your case :
Z i toxj_an increase in permanent disability or to request additional
: medical treatment, Please keep this in mind. I would ask that,
once you get your final permanent disability Payment, you mark
your calendar for 18 months in advance jas a PleCaution), to
eénsure that (ie two-year period does not Pass unnoticed.
As always, I will be available for any questions you might 3
g have_with regard to your case or any legal issues that confront 3
You in the future, T wish you the best. % #
Thank you for your attention. ; -
.
| Very truly yours, 4 ;
i :
i C GIORDANO, HALLERAN CIESLA, P.C. g
| : !
! o l
: .
f M. Scott Tashjy, Esq.
MST/cme
( APPENDIX A-1 Pa 19
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW
125 HALF MILE ROAD
POST OFFICE BOX 190

17321 7413900
FAX: (7321 224-6%99

@41 CABT STATE sTACET
TREHTON NEw JCRICT CueNY
‘0™ o83 3900

PLEASE REALY TO. MIOOLETOWN

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER-

(732) 219-5484

September 29, 1997

Mr. Rona li illiliht

Re: Ohnmacht v. Township of Middletown

Dear Mr. Ohnmacht:

GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA
A PROFCSSIONAL CORPORATION

MICOLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748

WENOLAS # sasye

4000P% 6. Carsuccio
CHamLES & CENVB
J0n0ana Buvemnttiy
—CHalL 4 vt O

Satmice 8. COmvEime

OCaTwen eva. rman, 47 romar
S CLATTED Crummmnas, (. 41 7O ¥

g .

9142/377

Enclosed please find three (3)-blenk Applications for Review
or Modification of Formal Award. Please sign where indicated an
return same to me per the enclosed self-addreossed stamped

envelope.

Thank you for your attention.

Very truly yo

MST/cme
Enclosure

M. Scott Tashjy, Esq.




GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CiESLA
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
128 HALF MLE ROAD
POST OFFICE BOX 190
MIDOLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748
7321 74).3900
FAX 17321 224 .6%99

S —

@41 CAST STATE STRECT
TACNTON. nEw CRICTY OROE®
0% e9s- 3000

PLEASE REPLY TO MIODLETOWN
— FAINIEA 3 COmvEnT
OIRECT D1AL nUMBER:

M"M"-n-l*v
:..,:'._.:'.?2‘:.'.‘.‘.... (732) 219-5484 Pyroadandimgiolb e
w‘;:::n. RE NO.
o Teomas oae e
somm ¢ 04 v0 \ 9142/1117

o

October 13, 1997

Mr. Ronald Ohnmacht

" Re: Ohnmacht v. Township of Middletown

Dear Mr. Ohnmacht:

Please be advised that we have filed a Reopener Claim
Petition with regard to your Workers' Compensation claim. Please
contact my office ana adviea me specifically the complaints you
have with regard to your leg and your reck. As you will recall,
when we originally settled this matter, we reserved the right to

Feopen this claim, but we must indicate to the Court how your
s ' injuries have "worsened" since the date of the last Order in this
‘j matter. Thus, your input is essential. Please contact me at
! your convenience so we may discuss these issues.

s e oe————————————— —

Thank vou for your attention.

{ Very truly yours

. oAt

M. Scott Tashjy, Esq. ;
MST/vak Sh! e
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it L e,
A PROFESS/IONAL Conmomarion .. . o~
ATTORNEYS AT LAw
123 MALF MILE ROAU
POST OFFICE BOX 190
MIDOLETOWN, New JERSEY 07748
17321 741- 3900
FAX 17321 224 .639%
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wEOLE OEvamey

PLEASE REPLY TO. MOOLETOWN

—_ \COntees ovm. rmay 41 romate
r=sbibaiong Eolore o0
OIRECT DIAL NUMBER sty '

COum;
NSy Smaran (732) 219-5484 oion

87 coumens
8 Tnomas sasiiane

9142/1117
{ January 6, 1998
! E
!
Mr. Ronald Ohnmacht i
! |
Re: Ohnmacht V. Township of Middletown 10
e _OF_Nidq I
Dear Mr, Ohnmacht:
i Please contact my office to schoqulo an appointment which By
i would be convenient for yourself regarding the reopening of your
E Workers' Compernisation claim, 1f {¢ is not convanient for you to =

meet at my office, please be advised that 1 would be happy to

i meet you at headquarters. I look forward to Speaking with you
soon,

Thank you for your attention.

i Very truly yoyrs 2 :

3

| _ . HoA .

E M. Scott Tashjy, Esq. e -

] MST/imb » P Y
p— b
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GIORDANC HALLERAN & CigSLA
A PROFCSSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
125 MALF MILE ROAD
POST OFFICC BOX 190
MIDOLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748
17321 741- 3900
FAX 17321 2246599

44 CaBT wraTE wrac. s

TRENTON Ew CHuCY One. 3 s

eyt d I L ] s2C0uELInE Dicanto
~EOLE DEvamer

PLEASE REPLY TO: MODLE fown

OIMECT Oray NuMeER ‘2"’-1'-:‘.‘:::.".‘:".:..
(732) 219-5484 e no
9142/1117

January 26, 1998

Detective Ronald Ohnmacht

Re: Ohnmacht v, Township of Middletown
T—_OWNSNIp of Middletown

Dear Detective Ohnmache:

Please contact me at your earliesr possible convenience so
that we may schedule a mutually agreed upon date und time for an
appointment so that we may discuss reopening your claim. [n the
alcernative, Please advise me as to your availabilicy ac
Headquarters, and I will be happy to me2C you there.

Very ctruly yo
T SRR o . S
)’ N e i mk,

u./sd Tavsh\j)'./'é:‘.
MST/job
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA 7

/,‘ A Professional Corporation
125 Half Mile Road
P.O. Box 190
Middletown, New Jersey 07748 :
(732) 741-3900 1
Attomeys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno ; -
: SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY H
| STATE OF NEW JERSEY, : LAW DIVISION - CRIMINAL PART 5
5 : MONMOUTH COUNTY
Plaintiff, : Case No. 98-00489
v. Criminal Action e
: NOTICE OF CROSS-MOTLON TO COMPEL
GREGORY S. BRUNO, : THE PRODUCTION OF DISCOVERY AND
Defiadant : FOR A SPEEDY INDICTMENT

TO:  Criminal Motions Clerk
Monmouth Countv Superior Court
71 Monument Park
Freehold, New Jersey 07728

The Honorable James A Kennedy

Judge of the Superior Court of New Jersey
Monmouth County Courthouse

71 Monument Park L
Freehold, New Jersey 07728

Peter E. Warshaw, Jr.
Assistant Prosecutor
Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office
East Wing, Courthouse, Third Floor
H ] Freehold, New Jersey 07728-1261

SIRS/MADAM:
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, on August 14, 1998, or a time to be set by the Court, i

counsel for defendant, Gregory S. Bruno, shall cross-move before the Honorable James A.
Kennedy, J.S.C., for an Order compelling a speedy indictment and that the Monmouth County A
Prosecutor's Office produce compleft. discovery and a complete witness list in this matter.
In support of the aforesaid Cross-Motion, defendant shall rely upon the ittached
Certification in Lieu of Affidavit of Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq. and Letter Brief.

Pa 24
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Pursuant to the Court Rules, an original and two copies of a proposed form of Order is
attached hereto and made a part hereof. Oral argument is hereby requested.

GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.
Attomneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno

By: ME

. EDWARD C. BERTUCIO, JR.,

Dated: August ,5 , 1998
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

Mail to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deiiver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Middletown, N.J. 07748
(732) 741-3900

Atorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY,

GREGORY S. BRUNO,

i SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
i LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
Plaintiff, i MONMOUTH COUNTY

CASE NO. 98-00489
Criminal Acti
ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATION

IN LIEU OF AFFIDAVIT OF
! EDWARD C. BERTUCIO, JR., ESQ.

v.

Defendant.

I, EDWARD C. BERTUCIO, JR., ESQ, an attomey-at-law in the State of New Jersey,

hereby certify the following facts to be true:

I'am a member of the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C. As such, I am fully

familiar with the facts I am about to relate.

2. Please accept the following attachments as Exhibits to be considered in opposition to the

w.ate of New Jersey’s Motion to Disqualify counsel in this matter.

3:

4,

S.

Exhibit “A” is the Attomney’s Certification of M. Scott Tashjy, Esq.
Exhibit “B” is the Attorney’s Certification of Norman M. Hobbie, Esq.
Exhibit “C” is the Attomney’s Certification of Guy Ryan, Esq.

. Exhibit “D” is the Attorney’s Certification of Michelle Querques, Esq.

Exhibit “E” is the Affidavit of Gregory Bruno.
Exhibit “F" is the Affidavit of Robert Bruno.

S—
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9. I have been a member of this firm since June 19, 1995. I have never represented
v Deiective Ronald D. Ohnmacht in any legal matter.
10. I do not represent any PBA''s or police collective bargaining organizations.
11. I was not a member of this firm during the pendency of Ward v. Middletown Township, ;
etal. in 1992, L ,
12. I do not practice in the area of worker’s compensation law. I have not had any

connection to Detective Ohnmacht’s worker’s compensation case at any time.

o —————

13. I do not have any personal relationship with Detective Ohnmacht.

14. During my employment with Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., I have not learned from

any source any information regarding Detective Ohnmacht's investigative or interrogative

techniques. I have not leamed any attomey-client information regarding Detective Ohnmacht
from any source.

15. Mr. Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. and ! fully apprised our client, Gregory Bruno, and his
‘amily, of this firm’s prior representation of Detective Ohnmacht and that Mr. Hobbie knew

Detective Ohnmacht when Mr. Bruno first retained this firm to represent him in this matter.

16. Mr. Hobbie and I have kept Gregory Bn 0 and his family fully informed of the position

4 of the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office as to an alleged conflict of interest based on this
firm’s prior representation of Detective Ohnmacht and the suggestion that a personal friendship
has created a coullict of interest.

17. At the time Mr. Bruno retained us to undertake his representation in State v. Bruno, he h

indicated that he did not see any actual or potential conflict of interest and wished this firm to Y

enter an appearance as defense counsel in this matter.

Pa 26.5
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18. Since the time of the initial retention of this firm, both Mr. Gregory Bruno and his family
have insisted that Mr. Hobbie and I and this firm remain as counsel to Gregory Bruno in State v,
Bruno.
19. On February 1, 1998, Gregory Bruno was arrested and charged with murder and related
ik | offenses. ‘1ii. charges expose Mr. Bruno to the death penalty. He is on trial for his life.
20. On February 4, 1998, this firm was retained to represent Greéorv Bruno in the criminal
matter, State v, Bruno. ;‘
21. On February 10, 1998 a Substitution of Attorney was filed with the Criminal Case
Management Office, substituting this firm as counsel of record for the Monmouth County Trial
Region of the Public Def nder’s Office.
22. For six months defendant has been incarcerated in lieu of bail, but has not been indicted. }
23. This firm has not been provided with discovery. ;
24. In paragraph 4 of his Affidavit, Detective Ohnmacht represents the extent of his .
investigation in this case. No documentation or discovery is provided in support of Detective i
Ohnmacht’s claims of the extent of his participation in this investigation.
25. In paragraph 10 of his Certification, Assistant Monmouth County Prosecutor Peter
‘E‘ i Warshaw states, “Upon information and belief, I assert that Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla has
] represented numerous Middletown Township police officers in the past, some of whom may be
witnesses in this case.” He then requests of the Court an Order that we provide a list of
i Middletown Township police officers that we have represented.
26. Without the discovery in this case Mr. Hobbie and I and this firm must answer these 5

allegations of an alleged or apparent conflict of interest without possession of specific facts

surrounding the extent of Detective Ohnmachg’s participation in this investigation. For example,




Detective Ohnmacht opines that he will be called to testify at a Miranda Hearing. However, the
undersigned understands on information and belief that Mr. Bruno did not give an inculpatory
statement, was questioned briefly by another officer while Detective Ohnmacht was present, and
was allowed to leave the police department after the interview concluded. See Exhibit “C” of |
Assistant Monmouth County Prosecutor Warshaw’s Certification. Thus, a factual question exists
as to whether Detective Ohnmacht will, in fact, face any cross-examinz*ion as to any statements
obtained from Mr Bruno. |
27. Likewise, without a list of the State’s witnesses, this firm cannot advise Mr. Bruno
properly on this case, nor can this firm properly discharge its duties 2s an officer of the Court in
responding to this motion and distinguish between an alleged conflict of interest and, as the case
law states, “a mere fanciful possibility.” Thus, the Court should order a speedy grand jury
presentation and, if an indictment is returned, immediate production of the discovery and a |
witness list so that, if necessary, any factual issues arising from the State’s Motion to Disqualify
Counsel may be settled on the actual facts and not on “imagined or fanciful possibilities.”
28. On July 13, 1998, I wrote to Assistant Monmouth County Prosecutor Warshaw
& requesting discovery in this matter and alerting him of the continued delay in presenting this
matter to the grand jury, and that same has hampered defendant’s efforts to properly investigate
the charges and pursue a defense. A copy of my correspondence is attached hereto as Exhibit
: 29. On July 17, 1998, Assistant Prosecutor Warshaw responded to my correspondence,

stating, “This office will not provide discovery until the time of the arraignment and certainly not .

until the issue of representation is resolved.” A copy of his letter is attached as Exhibit “H.”




30. The delay in presenting this matter to a grand jury and, upon return of an indictment, in
presenting the discovery has hampered Mr. Bruno and his attorneys in (1) responding to the
preJent motion within a fact based context and not on imagined conflicts and (2) in properly

investigating this matter and preparing a defense to a capital murder prosecution.

31. Therefore, it is respectfully requested that the State of New Jersey’s Motion to Disqualify

this firm from representing Mr. Bruno be denied and that defendant’s cross-motion for a speedy
grand jury presentation and, upon indictment, immediate supplying of disco ‘ery be granted.
Should there be an actal or apparent conflict of interest after review of the discovery, as
Officers of the Coust, Mr. Hobbie and T will be in a position to so inform counsel and the Court.

I hereby certify that the foregoing facts are true to the best of my knowledge, information
and belief. I am aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I am subject to

punishment.

Edward C. Benuciwr., Esq.

Dated: August S, 1998
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

Mail to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deliver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Lincroft, N.J. 07738

(732) 741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno

STATE OF NEW JERSEY SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
Plaintiff, MONMOUTH COUNTY

v. CASE NO. 98-00489

GREGORY S. BRUNO, Civil Action i
{

Defendant . CERTIFICATION IN LIEU i

OF AFFIDAVIT OF
M. SCOTT TASHJY, ESQ.

|
g e

1. I, M. Scott Tashjy, of full age, do hereby certify and state:
2. I'am an attorney-at-law in the State of New Jersey and a Shareholder with the law f 7

O | firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C.

« 3. Pursuant to my position, I am responsible for overseeing the day to day operations of

the Workers’ Compensation Department for our firm. Iam the only attomey in our firm wiio

represents clients in Workers’ Compensation claims. My practice is limited strictly to Workers'

Compensation, Personal Injury and Social Security/Retirement Disability practice. .

4. In this capacity, I represented Detective Ohnmacht in a Workers® Compensation 4. -
claim which was settled before the Honorable Neale F. Hooley via an Order Approving




Settlement, on June 24, 1997. (See Exhibit “A.”) At that time the Workers’ Compensation file

for Detective Ohnmacht was closed.

5. On or about February 13, 1998, I was cont. d by D ive Oh ht and asked to
discuss the pcte-tial of reopening his claim in accordance with the New Jersey Workers’
Compensation Law. I advised Detective Ohnmacht that our firm could not represent him in the
reopener of his Worker’s Compensation matter because I was advised by my office of the
representation of Gregory Bruno by Norman Hobbie and Edward Bertucio of my office. Iwas
made aware that Detective Ohnmacht was involved in the Bruno investigation and because of
that our office could not represent him in any matter whatsoever. 1 suggested various other
attorneys in other law firms with expertise in Workers’ Compensation for him to contact, at his
convenience, to pursue his claim. I took no affirmative action after our February 13, 1998
meeting to pursue a reopener or any other claim for Workers’ Compensation benefits on behalf '

of Detective Ohnmacht.

6. In reviewing the submissions of the State of New Jersey, I note that within the
Affidavit of Detective Ohnmacht, specifically the attachment denoted as A-3, thereisa g
typographical error in the first line of that letter of October 13, 1997, whereby same should have .
read: '

‘Please be advised that we have pot filed a Reopener Claim
Petition with regard to your Workers’ Compensation claim”.

A fair reading of that letter in its entirety clearly indicates that I contacted Detective Ohnmacht
as a follow-up to my September 29, 1997 letter to determine whether a.basis existed for the

| reopening of his Workers’ Compensation claim. Further, attachments A-4 and A-5 to

g Detective Ohnmacht’s Affidavit support the fact that I was attempting to get information from




Detective Ohnmacht to determine a basis for filing a Reopener Petition. Detective Ohnmacht did
not respond to any of these letters until the February 13, 1998 conversation aforestated.

7. Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio had no part in the representation of
Detective Ohnuc .cht regarding his Workers’ Compensation claim. Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio
did not take any action in pursuing said claim. They never appeared in Court on said claim and
never negotiated on behalf of Detective Ohnmacht. I was solely m;-wnsible for the handling of
this matter.

8. The facts of Detective Ohnmacht’s Workers’ Compensation case in no way involved
or related to the criminal cz+e of State v. Bruno, and I have absolutely no involvement in Mr.
Hobbie's and Mr. Bertucio's representation of Mr. Bruno in his criminal case, nor do I have any
direct or indirect representative duties o1 obligations on behalf of Mr. Bruno in his criminal case.

9. My questioning of Detective Ohnmacht in his Workers’ Compensation claim had no
bearing on any testimony he may give in a criminal case, particularly the case of Mr. Bruno. Nor
did I ever leamn of any investigative or interrogative techniques of Detective Chmunacht at any
time during my representation of him. I have never discussed any attorney-client information
involving Detective Ohnmacht with either Mr. Hobbie or Mr. Bertucio.

The above statements are true to the best of my knowledge. If any of the above

statcments made are willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

5
DATED: Augusf , 1998

:ODMA\PCDOCS\GHCDOCS\925 M\
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

Mcil to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deliver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Middletown, N.J. 07748
(732) 741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Brune

i SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
{ LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
Plaintiff, ; MONMOUTH COUNTY

CASE NO. 98-00489

“STATE OF NEW JERSEY,

GREGORY S. BRUNO,
ATTORNEY'S CERTIFICATION
IN LIEU OF AFFIDAVIT OF

Defendant. i
NORMAN M. HOEBIE, ESQ.

I, NORMAN M. HOBBIE, ESQ., »n attorney-at-law in the State of New Jersey, hereby
certify the following facts to be true:

1. Iam a member of the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., counsel to Gregory
Bruno in the above-captioned matter. As such, I am fully familiar with the facts I am about to
relate.

2. On or about February of 1998, this firm was retained to represent Mr. Bruno in the
above-captioned case.

3. Ithas been asserted by Mr. Warshaw that this firm presently represents Detective
Ohnmacht and that Detective Ohnmacht selected this firm for representation because of my
professional reputation and because he personally knows me. In addition, Mr. Warshaw suggests
that the foregoing constitutes a potential conflict and as such this firm should be disqualified

from representing M. Bruno. e
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4. On or about October of 1992, Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C. undertook the
representation of Detective Ronald Ohnmacht in Ward v. The Township of Middietown, et al.
Two attorneys in the firm at the time, Michele Querques, Esq., who is a member of the firm, and
Guy P. Ryan, Fsq., a former associate with the firm, were assigned the matter.

5. Ms. Querques and Mr. Ryan were responsible for the litigation of this matter to its
conclusion.

6. The matter wa. resolved, in 1993, by a case dispositive motion on the papers.

7. During 1996 and 1997, this firin represented Detective Ohnmacht in a worker’s
compensation matter. The matter was assigned to M. Scott Tashjy, Esq., a member of this firm.
Mr. Tashjy is the only attomey at this firm who handles workers’ compensation cases.

8. The worker's compensation matter was handled exclusively by Mr. Tashjy.

9. Itis my understanding that Detective Ohnmacht’s worker’s compensation matter was
closed during the Summer of 1997. To date, the case has not been reopened. (See Certification

of M. Scott Tashjy, Esq.)

10. I do not possess any information from the foregoing that can in any way be used against
7 i Detective Ohnmacht to impeach or cross-examine him or anyone else in or the Middletown
Township Police Department in the prosecution of State v. Gregory Bruno,
11. All of the above issues have been fully discussed with Gregory Bruno and his parents.

Mr. Bruno and his parents all have indicated to me that the issues involving Detective Ohnmacht

suggested by the State to create a conflict of interest, have been fully explained to them, they
understand the scope and terms of same, and they have insisted that I remain as counsel in State .

v. Gregory Bruno. :
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12. Neither I nor Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq., another member of this firm, represent any
Police Benevolent Associations (PBA's) in the State of New Jersey.

13. No one else in Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., represents any PBA organization or
police collective bargaining entity.

14. 1 fully expect Detective Ohnmacht, despite his long-standing personal relationship with ¢
the family of Gregory Bruno, to fully and zealously pursue the investigation and prosecution of

Mr. Bruno with the utmost integrity and professionalism.

15. Likewise, I intend to fully and zealously represent Gregory Bruno in this matter. Nothing ]
will cause me in any way to fail to discharge fully my obligations to Gregory Bruno and to
defend him as aggressively aud completely as I can, and with the utmost in professionalism and
integrity.

I hereby certify that the foregoing facts are true to the best of my knowledge, information and

belief. I am aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

orm: . Hobbie, Esq.

{ Dated: Augusllf, 1998

:ODMA\PCDOCS\GHCDOCS\10569\1




CERTIFICATION OF GUY P. RYAN, ESQ.

I, GUY P. RYAN, ESQ., an attorney at law in the State of New Jersey, hereby certify the
following facts to be true:
1. 1am a former associate to the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C. I was
assigned to handle tue file of Ward v. Township of Middletown, et al. during my employment at
Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C. As such, I am fully familiar with the facts I am about to } ~»

relate. ._

2. Michele A. Querques. Esq., a member of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., and I were ;
the attorneys assigned to handle the defense of this matter. Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. did not {
participate in the actual defensc of Detective Ohnmacht in Ward v, Township of Middletown. ;

3. The representation was pro forma. There was a brief period of discovery, followed by a :
case dispositive motion from which the matter was dismissed.

4. During the entire time that | handled this matter, I never had any personal meetings or
telephone contact with Detective Ohnmacht. All communication with him was by way of
correspondence from me to him as to the status of this case.

v ! 5. Once this matter was closed, I did not have any meetings or telephone contact with
Detective Ohnmacht.
6. At no time during the pendency of Ward v. Township of Middletown did I ever learn,
either through Detective Ohnmacht or anyone else, of any investigative techniques or
interrogative techniques employed by Detective Ohnmacht or any other member of the

| Middletown Township Police Department. My representation of Detective Ohnmacht was 5%

relatively brief and conducted through the mail and in court on the papers. I never
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communicated any attorney-client information to Mr. Hobbie regarding Detective Ohnmacht
duning my representation of him, nor did I ever learn of any such information.

7. 1have since left my association with Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla and work in another
law firm.

8. Atno tim=, ~ither during my association with Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., or at
any time thereafter, have I ever communicated any attorney-client confidential information, or
any other information with regard to Detective Ohnmacht, to Norman M. Hoobie, Esq. or
Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq. I never leaned of any such information in the first place.

I her by certify the foregoing facts to be true to the best of my knowledge, information and

belief. Iam aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

“Ryan,

Dated: Au; , 1998 s
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

Mail to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deliver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Middletown, N.J. 07748
(732) 741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno.

STATE OF NtV JERSEY, i SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
: LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
Plaintiff, : MONMOUTH COUNTY

CASE NO. 98-00489

i

GREGURY S. BRUNO, _
. | ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATION

Defendant. | " |N LYEU OF AFFIDAVIT OF

MICHELE A. QUERQUES, ESQ.

I, MICHELE A. QUERQUES, ESQ., 2n attorney-at-law in the State of New Jersey,
hereby certify the following facts to be true:

1. Iam a member of the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C. As such, I am fully
familiar with the facts | am about to relate. I was assigned to handle the file of Ward v,
Township of Middletown, et al., along with a former assodiate of this firm Guy P. Ryan, Esq.
Mr. Ryan and I handled the actual defense of Detective Ohnmacht in Ward v. Township of
Middletown, et al. Norman M. Hobbie, Esq., did not participate in the day-to-day defense of
Detective Ohnmacht in said matter.

2. The representation was pro forma. After a brief period of discovery, a case dispositive
motion was filed by this firm and the matter was dismissed.

3. During the entire time that I handled this matter, I never leamed, either from Detective
Ohnmacht or anyone else, of any investigative techniques or interrogative techniques employed

by Detective Ohnmacht or any other member of the Middletown Township Police Department.

e S




My representation of Detective Ohnmacht was relatively brief and was conducted mainly
through mailings and filing of discovery and court papers. I never communicated any attorney-
client information to Mr. Hobbie regarding Detective Ohnmacht during my representation of
’ him. Inever learned of any such information to communicate same to Mr. Hobbie.
4. Atno time during my representation of Detective Ohnmacht, nor at any time thereafter,
have I ever communicated any attorney-client confidential information, or any cther information
with regard to Detective Ohnmacht, to either Mr. Hobbie or to Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq. of

this firm. 1 aever leamned of any such information in the first place.

I hereby certify that the foregoing facts are true to the best of my knowledge, information

and belief. I am aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I may be subject to l
punishment. !
|
i

e 8

Michele A. Querques, Esq.
|
Dated: August 3, 1998 1' L
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

1Mail to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deliver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Middletown, N.J. 07748
(732) 741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno.

: STATE OF NEW JERSEY, i SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
i LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
Plaintiff, . MONMOUTH COUNTY

i CASE NO. 98-00489

Criminal Acti

"l i AFFIDAVIT OF
Defendant. i GREGORY BRUNO

V.

GREGORY S. BRUNO,

I, GREGORY BRUNO, of full age and having been duly swom according to my oath

hereby depose and say:

1. I'am the defendant in the above-captioned matter, State v. Gregory Bruno.

2. After an extensive search for counsel, I retained Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. to represent
in the above-captioned matter.

3. He has been my attorney since February 4, 1998.
4. From that time period to present, Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio have been extensively

involved in the preparation of my defense. We have had numerous meetings, have discussed
strategy and, through a private investigator, have taken extensive steps in the conduct of our own

investigation into this matter.
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5. Iretained Mr. Hobbie because I understand this matter will be prosecuted as a capital
offense. Iam on trial for my life. Mr. Hobbie is the attorney that I have selected to defend me in
this matter.

6. It would be an extreme hardship and devastating to my defense to lose the services of Mr.
Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio at this point in the case.. They are both extensively involved in my
defense. I have complete trust and confidence in them, and to be forced to change lawyers now ‘
when my life is at stak~ would be extremely unfair and prejudicial to me in the preparation of my Q.
defense.

7. Both Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio have fully informed me of the prior representation of
Detective Ohnmacht and the suggested personal friendship between Detective Ohnmacht and

Mr. Hobbie. I do not see any actual or potential conflict of interest in their representation of me.

I have complete confidence that they will represent me aggressively and zealously, despite the +
prior representation and the suggested friendship of Detective Ohnmacht by the Giordano firm.
z 8. Ihave previously directed them to represent me and have waived any alleged or ;‘
perceived conflict of interest (even theugh I do not allege or perceive any myself). ‘ a
. il 9. Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio have explained to me that the Monmouth County %

Prosecutor’s office for the last several months has maintained that a conflict of interest exists and
that they intended to file a motion to disqualify Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio from this case. I

instructed Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio to remain on this case and insisted that they continue

their representation of me. b b
i 10. I respectfully request the Court not to place an extreme hardship upon me or unfairly . ¥, 3"
4 o S 1
] prejudice my defense in this capital murder case by ordering the removal of my counsel. To do ’__* e

so would have a devastating impact on my defense by interrupting their efforts and by forcing

s
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me to start over with new counsel, who I do not want, and who would have to recommence an
investigation and preparation of my defense over seven months after the homicide allegedly
occurred.

11. To forze new counsel to play catch up in a capital murder case at this point in time is
unfair to me.

I hereby swear that the foregoing facts are true to the best of my knowledge, information and

belief. Iam aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

Gngaygfm

Sworn to and subscribed to before
me this ) 8day of July, 1998

—

i
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

Mail to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deliver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Middletown, N.J. 07748
(732) 741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno

?TATE OF NEW JERSEY, SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL) |
Plaintiff, MONMOUTH COUNTY

; CASE NO. 98-00489

GREGORY S. BRUNU, f:'
AFFIDAVIT OF "

Defendant. ROBERT BRUNO |

i

I, ROBERT BRUNO, of full age and having been duly sworn according to oath hereby

——————

depose and say:

1. Iam the father of Gregory Bruno, who is charged with murder and faces the death

.

penalty in the above-captioned matter, Statc v. Bruno. As such, I am fully familiar with the facts
I am about to relate.
B 2. As my son was being charged with murder on February 1, 1998, I undertook an extensive
search and interview process (o find the best counsel I could to defend him.
3. After my extensive search, I, together with my son and my family, decided to retain
Norman M. Hobbie, Esq. and the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., to represent my
son in this matter. 5
4. Atthe time I retained Mr. Hobbie, and at various times thereafter, he fully apprised me of
the prior representation of Detective Ronald Ohnmacht by Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C.,

and of the personal friendship suggested by the State to create a conflict of interest.

i
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5. 1, along with my son and my family, fully consented to Mr. Hobbie being retained and
continuing as counsel to Gregory Bruno in this matter.

6. Since Mr. Hobbie was initially retained, I and my son have been kept fully apprised of
the position of the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s office with respect to the continued
representation of my son by Mr. Hobbie, Mr. Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq., and the Giordano
law firm. I disagree with the Prosecutor’s Office and do not see any actual or perceived conflict
of inte-est.

7. 1have always insisted, and continued to insist, as has my son, that Mr. Hobbie and Mr.
Bertucio and the Giordano luw firm continue as counsel in this maiter. 1am completely
confident, as is my son, that they will represent him zealously and aggressively.

8. It would be extremely unfair and very prejudicial to disqualify my son’s counsel at this
juncture in the case, as the Giordano firm has undertaken extensive investigation in this matter.
Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio have spent months with my son and have developed a mutual trust
and confidence, which I believe is vital to the defense of my son, who is on trial for his life.

9, Simply put, neither my son nor I want any other attorney on this case.

10. Detective Ohnmacht has been a long-standing family ﬁ'i;nd to me and my entire family
for years prior to the arrest of my son in this matter.

11. That has not prevented Detective Ohnmacht from discharging what he believes to be his
duty in the investigation and prosecution of the homicide alleged in State v. Bruno. I have not
expected him to act other than in a professional manner. ;

12. I likewise expect Mr. Hobbie and Mr. Bertucio to act in the same professional and
zealous manner in the defense of my son, as our family friend Detective Ohnmacht has done in

the investigation and prosecution of my son.




1 hereby swear that the foregoing facts are true to the best of my knowledge, information and

belief. 1am aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I am subject to punishment.

Bld

Robert Bruno

Sworn to and subscribed to before
me this 3 ““day of August, 1998
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SEAN EREGAN JACQUELING DECARLD TRIAL ATTORNEY
""""" DENRA J. RUBENITEIN NICOLE DRvaNEY
DIRECT DIAL NUMBER: DIRECT E.MAIL: ey AL CUENT/MATTER NO &
11308/001
July 13, 1998
Peter Warshaw, Assistant Prosecutor
Monmouth County Prosecutc. ’s Office
Court House, East Wing, Third Floor
71 Monument Park
Freehold, New Jersey 07728-1261
Re: V. g
Prosecutor’s Case No.: 98-00489
Jear Mr. Warshaw: b .
It has been sometime since I have heard from you with regard to the above-referenced
matter, specifically, the Prosecutor’s Offic2’s Motion to have this firm disqualified as counsel for -
Defendant, Gregory Bruno. Moreover, I still have not received the requested discovery in this
matter. <
* | As you are aware, my receipt of the discovery in this matter is imperative for two
4 reasons, specifically:
{ 1. It will allow this firm to properly respond to your anticipated Motion to disqualify
thiz fim; and .
] 2 It will allow this firm to properly investigate this matter (i.e., the continual delay
1 in presenting this matter before the Grand Jury and supplying this firh with the e
: requested discovery has hampered Defendant’s attempts to properly investigate b
4 the charges and pursue a defense). i
Accordingly, if we do not receive the requested discovery within seven days from the .
2 date of your receipt of this letter, Defendant will file a motion to compel the production of same, - X
—
g . Pa 48
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

Perer Warshaw, Assistant Prosecutor
July 13, 1998
Page 2

Should you have any questions or concerns with regard to the foregoing, please contact
me forthwith.

Very truly yours,
GIORDANO, HALLERAN IES PC

Fdnvanal

Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq.
ECB/mem

=ODMA\PCDOCS\GHCDOCS\7400\
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OFFICE OF THFE. COUNTY PROSECUTOR
COUN' Y OF MONMOUTH
71 MONUMENT PARK
FREEHOLD, NEW JERSEY 07728-1261
v (908) 431-7160 AvLTon D. D::rm:v
4 FinsT AsSSISTANT Prostcuron
Tl LR vk iy ' Rostar A, Howecren, un.
WiLLiam ? Gmgonv
Dirgcrom of TriaL Division
WiLtiam P. Lucia
| CHIEF OF INVESTIGATIC §
= 1 July 17, 1998
|
| Edward C. Bertucic, Jr., Esq. St
GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA .

5 125 Half Mile Road, P.O. Box 190

§ Middletown, New Jersey 07748 ‘

; Re:  State of New Jersey v. Gregory Bruno e

é Dear Mr. Bertucio:

3 I received your letter dated July 13, 1998, subsequent to our telephone

! conversation of July 17, 1998. As we discussed, the motion to disqualify counsel was

filed on July 16 and is returnable before The Honorable John A. Ricciardi, P.J.Cr. on

i August 7, 1998. This office will not provide discovery until the time of the

arraignment and certainly not until t.e issue of representation is resolved.

!

\ I can be reached directly at 577-6790 and look forward to hearing from you at
g ‘i your earliest convenience regarding this matter.
. Very truly yours,
i
JOHN KAYE

MU’I‘H OUNTY PROSECUTOR
F /’ o (C 5

By: Peter E. Warshaw, Ji istant Prosecutor
Director, Major Unit
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JOH!. KAYE

MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR

COURT HOUSE

FREEHOLD, NEW JERSEY 07728-1261

(908) 431-7160
SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
CASE NO.98-00489
WARRANT COMPLAINTS
1998-000043-1331 & 1998-000044-1331

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Plaintiff, : CRIMINAL ACTION

b
SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT
GREGORY S. BRUNO,

Defendant.

I, RONALD D. OHNMACHT, of full age, being duly sworn according to law,
upon my oath, depose and say:

1. I am a Detective with the Middletown Township Police Department and have
been employed by that department for approximately 30 years. I have been assigned to

the Detective Bureau for approximately 26 consecutive years.
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2. I have reviewed the certifications submitted by the defense in the above-
captioned matter.

3. Specifically, I have reviewed the certificationof M. Scott Tashjy, Esq. [do
recall having a conversation with him some time in February regarding the reopener claim.
Mr. Tashjy does not report that during our conversalio;: I 0! jected to the Giordano firm
represent.ng Bruno and indicated that I did not wish to switch lawyers. It is my
recollection that I expressly indicated that I wanted Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla to
continue to represent me. I believed it was in my best interests for the firm which handled
the original compensation matter to continue to handle the reopener. I do not want to have

to get a new lawyer at this juncture.

/éuuc ) Momre

Ronald ). Ohnmacht

Sworn and subscribed d to
before me this .’ 7" day

of August, 1998.

2 e 3 _//._."~. 5
e

-

P

Peter E. Warshaw,/Jr.
Attorney at Law, State of New Jersey
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JOHN KAYE

MONMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR
COURT HOUSE

FREEHOLD, NEW JERSEY 07728-1261
(732) 431-7160

SUPERIOP. COURT OF NEW JERSEY
LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)

CASE NO. 98-00489

WARRANT COMPLAINTS
1998-000043-1331 & 1998-000044-1331

STATE OF NEW JERSEY  : CRIMINAL ACTION
Plaintiff,
SUPPLEMENTAL CERTIFICATION
. IN SUPPORT OF MOTION SEEKING
v. TO DISQUALIFY COUNSEL

- { 4 o :

f GREGORY S. BRUNO :

i Defendant.

I, PETER E. WARSHAW, JR., hereby certify that the following facts are true

to the best of my knowledge:
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1. Tam an Assistant Monmouth County Prosecutor in which capacity I have
been assigned to prosecute the within matter which is pending grand jury. As such, [ am
fully familiar with the facts I now relate.

2 This supplemental certification is initially intended to address the issue ¢/
who represented Detective Ohnmacht in the civil action known as John Richard Ward v,

Township of Middletown, et. al. On August 13, 1998, I contacted the Office of the Clerk
of the Federal District Court in Trenton. [ spoke to Lillian Krzyzanowski of the Clerk's

Office.

3. Ms. Krzyzanowski advised me that the file itself was physically in Kansas

City, Missouri in archives. However, Ms. Krzyzanowski checked the Federal Court's
computerized docket sheet and advised me that the computer maintained by the Federal
Court indicated that the attorney of record for Detective Ohnmacht was Norman M.
Hobbie, Esq. who filed a substitution of attorney on March 29, 1993.

4, Additionally, attached herewith as Appendix A is a document epti*led

. Courtroom Confidence and Preparation. It pertains to a presentation by Norman M.

Hobbie, Esq. conducted Monday, March 24, 1997 for the Middletown Police Department.
This document was forwarded to me by a detective of the Middletown Police Department
who was aware that this motion was pending. This document is submitted because while

counsel certifies that they do not represent any PBA, there is clearly a close connection to

the PBA of the Middletown Police Department. .

e —————————

v
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3. I certify that the foregoing statements made by me are true. [am awarethat 7
if any of the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false. I am subject to
# punishment. 2
|
p ’A ’ /‘ ’I
ot S L
i Peter E. Warshaw, st/
Dated: - 27 5%
2
g .
1
i
RN :
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S
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA

Attorneys at Law
COURTROOM CONFIDENCE & PREPARATION
presented by
_, Norman M. Hobbie, Esq.
| Certified Civil Trial Attorney
| Certified Criminal Trial Attorney
‘ Monday, March 24, 1997
for : :
. ” THE MIDDLETOWN POLICE DEPARTMENT

|
§ .
: 125 Half Mile Road -
i Post Office Box 190 - 41 East State Street  F ¢

Middletown, NJ 07748 Trenton, NJ 08625

(908) 741-3900 (609) 695-3900 —
APPENDIX A
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| 1. This Seminar is offered for police personnel only.
i 2.  The presentation will be candid and opinionated. .
17
i 5 Fohs
| 3. Your questions are invited. E
4. No videos or recorders are allowed.
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ORMAN M. HOBBIE
is the partner in charge
and the head litigator
of the Criminal/Plaintiff’s
Personal Injury Department
of Giordano, Halleran &
Ciesla. He is responsible for

£ the investigation, preparation,

BrE and litigation of significant
and complex product liability,

medical malpractice, criminal

defense (including homicide,

aggravated sexual assault,
robbery, drug distribution), personal injury, and breach of
contract cases.

Mr. Hobbie has been designated by the Supreme Court of
the State of New Jersey as a Board Certified Civil and
Criminal Trial Attorney.

He is a former member of the Union County Prosecutor’s
Office, where he sered as lead litigation attorney for the
Major Crimes Unit. In such capacity, he was responsible for
the prosecution of homicide and aggravated sexual assault
cases. He was also Deputy Supervisor of the Special
Enforcement Unit wherein he prosecuted individuals who
violated the Controlled Dangerous Substance (CDS) and
Gambling Laws.

Mr. Hobbie is 8 Fordham University Law School gradu-
ate, a member of the Monmouth County, Union County, and
New Jersey State Bar Associations, and is licensed to prao-
tice law in New Jersey, New York, and Pennsylvania.

Norman M. Hobble
GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, PC
(908) 219-5484

GIORDANO, K
HEALLERAN &
| cms1a, PC

A dmereys u Loe
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PREFACE

The criminal justice/Disciplinary system is premised on the theory that Litigation (the
adversarial process) with its checks and balances and competing interests will vltimately
achieve justice, improve the quality of law enforcement, and facilitate the apprehension and
conviction .. criminals.

To me, Litigation is war and justice is a fleeting concept usually embraced by the successful
party. Thus, to win, the defense attorney representing the client must use every available
technique and skill to legally and ethically destroy the opposition's case. To that end, he
seeks justice (a.” .a. not guilty).

Successful defense litigation is accomplished through meticulous, comprehensive, and
aggressive representation (and sometimes a little “luck®).

My primary focus in “efense litigation is to identify the weaknesses of the pmucmidn's
case. All documentation, evidence and testimony must be thoroughly reviewed, analyzed,
examined and cross-referenced.

My secondary focus is the presentation of a reasonable defense (which will be consistent with
the deficiencies in the Investigator's/Prosecution’s case).

My third area of focus involves evaluating the judge, the prosecutor, the prosecution's theory
of the case and the impact the forcgoing would have on the jury (this in turn 'would dictate
the type of jurors | would challenge (excuse or keep)).

Thereafter, I am commitied 10 the attack. I believe in "pro-active” representation as oppose:”
10 "re-active” representation. [ subscribe to the adage that the best defense is a strong
offense -- in trial, as in war, I attack. i

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it should be the goal of the attorney representing the law
enforcement officer as a target to negative the Investigator's/Prosecutor's case.
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I CURRENT-TONE OF SOCIETY (PUBLIC SENTIMENT);

Law enforcement is an honorable profession which often times is not recognized for its

achievements and contributions to our society. Instead, law enforcement is continually maligned

by the media and other radical/liberal groups. Accordingly, the law enforcement officer, is well
advised to con( sously guard against committing any improprieties (or appearing to commit same;.

The foregoing concems are further magnified by the fact that we presently live in the
"Video/Recording Generation® and as such, law enforcement officers, while protecting the rights
of many, must also protect themselves from those individuals or groups who are ready and willing
to use such devices ‘> unfairly attack and discredit the profession.

That is, during the course of his employment, while testifying, or enjoying every day life,
the law enforcement officer must be mindful that certain actions (even a slight off-the-cuff comment
or inappropriate gesture) could be recorded and/or taken out of context in order to denigrate the
profession, subject the officer to unfair ridicule or prosecution.

To many, the men in blue are shining knights protecting our society. To others, the men
in blue are legalized ruffians who act as if they were "above the law". The Officer must know his

friends, guard against his enemies and “know his limitations". Dirty Harry - Magoum Force,

1. The Public 6.  Superior Officers
2. Media 7.  The Prosecution
3. Criminals 8. Judges

4, Defense attorneys 9.  Jurors

5. Liberals 10. Brother Officers

This seminar is dedicated to one area wherein the law enforcement officer is most vuinerauie
to attack -- Cross Examination at Trial.

The Law Enforcement Officer is a professional, however, at trial his character and
professionalism will be under constant scrutiny and attack.

There is no doubt that the tasks before law enforcement are imposing -- then again - *great

I.  KNOW YOUR TRIAL PROSECUTOR;

In the least, the Assistant Prosecutor should be experienced (as opposed to inexperienced),
patient (as opposed to impatient) and well prepared (as opposed to unprepared).

The Assistant Prosecutor must dedicate himself to the case and the cause. He must allocate
the appropriate amount of time o prepare the witnesses, leam the file, anticipate defense strategies

2
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and insure that the law enforcement officers are apprised of the foregoing. Should the assistant
prosecutor not conform to the above mentioned criteria, the law enforcement testimony and the case
will be compromised.

Thus. whenever the law enforcement officer is called upon to participate in a trial wherein
the Assistant Prosecutor does not fulfill his obligations or the officer is asked to deviate from his
oath (no maiier *ow slight), the officer should contact a supervising officer, refuse to deviaie and

doc the circ es (see Vega v, L).

M. THEOQFFICER AS A TARGET (DEFENDANTY;

The law enforcement officer’s nightmare has become an all too frequent reality. When the
law en’orcement officer is accused or a potential target, experience reveals that a disorienting,
all-consuming paranoia sets in which is rot consistent with survival.

Should the foregoing scenario ever befall you or one of your brother officers, the reflex must
be immediate and unyielding:

1. Do not speak to anyone;

2. Immediately contact your .awyer (the big *M"); and
3. Do not forget Rules #1 and #2.

Note: We will discuss the Prosecution of Law Enforcement (State v, J.C.. State v. G.L).

. w ! NEY;
Never underestimate the defense attorney, that is, whether he has a reputation for being
3 ! inexperienced and unprepared, or experienced and well prepared, always presume he will be the v
“} latter and unpredictable. The defense attorney is a formidable foe and as such he is capable of
4 discrediting you, the witness, and the prosecution's case.

i The focus of the defense attomey"s cross-examination may fall into any of the following
enumerated categories (not intended as an exhaustive listing):

Create confusion;

Distract jury's attention;

Set up the defense’s theory of the case;
Undermine the credibility of the witness;
Undermine the prosecution's theory of the case;
Impeach the witness;

Demonstrate a certain character trait;

SD NN e L0 o
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8. Establish prosecutorial misconduct;

9. Establish witness collusion (or rehearsal);

10.  Tlustrate conflict in prosecution's case;

11.  Discover new evidence,

12.  Educate the jury as to the relationship between the law and the facts;

13.  Establish the lack of evidence;

14.  Aw2 X the qualifications of expert witnesses;

15.  Establish facts consistent with the defendant’s case;

16.  To extract exculpatory testimony (especially if the Prosecution failed to do so on
direct);

17.  Repetition of exculpatory testimony;

18.  Establish inconsistencies in witnesses' testimony;

19.  Illustrate inability to perceive, observe, etc.

2u.  Demonstrate reasonable doubt.

THEABC's OF TR'AL-TESTIMONY;

Always anticipate the defense strategy and cross-examination questions before testifying in
Court (otherwise your actions will be perceived as being calculating and unreasonable) s
Belligerent, combative or arrogant witnesses are not well received by the jury (do not fall
prey to this defense trap).

Cross-reference your report with the reports of other law enforcement officers involved in
the case (consistency and accuracy must be ensured).

Documentation review should include search warrants, grand jury transcripts, index cards,
logs, etc.

Ensure that you do not embellish your testimony in order to cure prosecuiorial errors or
overzealousness.

Familiarize yourself with the evidence in the case. .

Guessing, assuming, lying or acting in an arrogant manner is improper courtroom testimony.
Hamper defense attomney's cross-examination timing, flow and direction. >

Insure that your courtroom attitude, voice and eye contact are appropriate, professional,
reasonable and natural.

Jurors, perception is often reality. Thus, do not jeopardize your credibility because of
unreasonable or unbelievable testimony. Jurors respond most favorably to witnesses who
are perceived as being honest, sincere, reasonable and well prepared.

Know the Rules of Evidence and current case law. Zealous investigation and reporting
which is not consistent with the Rules of Evidence and current case law will result in
suppressed evidence and inadmissible testimony.

Laborious investigation results in proper arrests and convictions (carelessness will result in
acquittals). The investigation of a criminal case and resulting documentation must at all
times be professional, meticulous and comprehensive (clear, succinct, accurate, and
consistent).

Mirandize all targets prior to interrogation, secure appropriate waiver and signatures, date
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Never try to sell the case when testifying. Your goal is to be yourself, not sell yourself. Be
true to yourself -- extrovert -v- introvert.

Omissions in the report regarding relevant persons, observations, statements, etc., will result
in intense cross-examination, magnification and exaggeration. Adverse inferences,

destructive cross-examination and argument based upon the foregoing, will mult in
acquittals.

Post-trial evaluation of your performance should be conducted with the Prosecutor and other
responsible personnel.

Questions must be asked, received, digested, and analyzed prior to the witnesses' answer,
Quick responses should be avoided by the witness.

Review your report before stating specific times, places, dates and observations and
statements.

Searches without a warrant are disfavored except when the search is justified by informed
written consent, plain view, exigent circumstance or incident to a lawful arrest.

Tape recorded or transcribed statements are always more persuasive than personal
recollection or written statements included in a police report.

Unbelievable testimon, is perfect and rehearsed, believable testimony is imperfect and
natural.

Visit the scene of the crime prior to finalizing your report and -testifying.

Written statements which are signed and corrected by the Defendant are more persuasive
than law enforcement officers recorded/reported recollection.

Xerox copies of unrelated or unnecessary reports, etc., should be purged from your file
before you testify (unless you are the custodian of the file or the investigator in charge of
the case).

Your oath mandates that the correct answer to a question is the truthful one (which may not
necessarily be the answer required by the prosecutor).

Zealous prosecution should never be allowed to alter your testimony or cause you to secrete
exculpatory evidence.

" L .

Never assume that all documentation is consistent, including, Grand Jury transcripts, police
reports, trial transcripts and statements. See State v, K.L.i US, v. M.F,

Never assume that all personal diaries, search warrants and the indictment are consistent.
See State v. K.l

Never embellish your testimony to satisfy the interest, motivations or overzealousness of the
prosecution. See Stalev. D. J, ; Statev, F. P, Vega,

Never let the defense attorney's questioning place you in an uncoftfortable and visibly
nervous demeanor. See State v. R.R,

—— 1 B e S SRR




S Never testify in an unbelievable or unreasonable fashion.

S ———
|

A).  "Despite the fact that he confessed, admitted his participation in the conspiracy, we
did not arrest him in a secluded place, but instead, we waited until he got into a

public bar." See U.S. v. M.E,

B).  "We never used any force, coercion or raised our voice in order to secure the

. siatements®. See State v, D.H,

6. Never assume that a signed statement taken from the defendant will be accepted by the jury
(he should initial and correct mistakes in his statement and the stat*ments must be in the
l defendant's vernacular). See State v, D.H. ("We/Be" defense).

P Never underestimate the defense attorney or attempt to alter the evidence to be consistent
with the statements. State v, F.P,

8. Never challenge or verbally attack the defense attorney (the defense attorney is a liar. State
v. K.L.) ("Just like you counsel” State v. D.P.).

Suate v, 1D, _ £

10.  Never reconstruct the scene or alter evidence so that identification of defendant matches the

witness's description. State v, F.P. :

[
|
I 9. Never assume that the time on the Miranda cards, statements and reports are consistent.

VIl IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PRESENT DISCIPLINARY PROCESS: B

The following are suggested impravements to the present process:

1. An agreement whereby an officer that has been suspended will be paid unless and
until there is a criminal conviction.

2 Independent fact-finder/decision-maker.
3. The investigating officer must be objective (in order to ensure fairness).

4. The complaining witness must be produced at the initial hearing. S

i S.  Defendant has the absolute right to produce witnesses at the initial hearing. iy
. 6. The accused should have the absolute right to confront the complaining witness as .S N
3 well as present exculpatory testimony by way of actual witness presentation. s
{ —
i)

-6

Pa 66

E ]




T,

prmneey

%
st ’ - -
INAPPROPRIATE FORM
INTERNAL AFFAIRS ADVISEMENT FORM
NAME: DEPARTMENT:
I You are being questioned as part of an official investigation by this office into events directly

related to your official position. This investigation concerns:

2. You will be asked questions specifically directed and narrowly related to the performance of your

official duties.

3 You have the right to efuse to answer any questions or make any statements that might
incriminate you in a criminal manner.

4. If you fail to exercise this right, anything you say may be used against you in a criminal

proceeding.

5 The right to refuse to answer a question on the grounds of your right against self-incrimination,
does NOT inciude the right to refuse to answer on the grounds that your answer may reveal a
violation of a department policy, rule or regulation that is not a criminal offense.

You may be subject to departmental discipline for refusal to give an answer that would not
implicate you in a criminal offense.

. Anything you say may be used against you not only in any subsequent department charges, but
also in any subsequent criminal proceeding.

8. You have the right to consult with a representative of your collective bargaining unit, or another
representative of your choice, and have them present during the interview.

I acknowledge that I have read and understand the contents of the above statement on this

of R L S

day

Signature:

Date: Time:
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PURLIC EMPLOYEE IMMUNITY UNDER
AND N.LS.A. 2A:81-17.2al ¢t seq. :

The law surrounding immunity for public employees, such as law enforcement officers,
is particularly co plex. Itis, however, an area of law that every law enforcement officer should
understand for his or her own protection.

Public employces, like every other person, possess the same privilege against
self-incrimination anc protection from giving a coerced statement under the Fifth Amendment '
of the United States Constitution as applicd to the individual states through the Fourteenth
Amcndment to the United States Constitution.

Notwithstanding, public employecs do have a duty to appear and testify on matiers
relating to the conduct of their office, position or employment before any Court, Grand Jury or i
the State Commission of Investigation. A pubiic employee who fails or refuses 10 50 appear and
testify is then subject to removal from his office, position or employment. NLS.A.
JA:31-17.221. ‘While the words of the statute only compe! the public employee to tesify ;
*hefore any Court, Grand Jury or the State Commission of Investigation . . . ," the statute has 4
been applied to compe! cocperation with law enforcement departmental invmipﬁons'u well, i

Banca v. Town of Phillipsburg. 181 N.L, Super. 109 (App. Div. 1981).

If the conduet of the law cnforcement officer being investigated constitutes a criminal

ISR

offcnse, the testimony compelled by N.LS.A. 2A:81-17.2a1 could incriminate the law

enforcoment officer.  This incriminating testimony could be compelled despite the Fifth

= B

Amendment privilege that the law enforcement officer possesses. This places the law

enforcement officer between ®a rock and a whirlpool,” that is, between the choice of

9-




self-incrimination or loss of public employment. This situation is unconstitutional. Garrity v,
New Jersey, 385 U.S. 493 (1967).
In order to resolve this dilemma, N.J.S.A. 2A:81-17.222 provides that if a law

enforcement officer or other public employee, having claimed the privilege against

self-incrimination, testifies before any Court, Grand Jury or the State Commission of
Investigation, or cooperates with any departmental investigation, any testimony or evidence
derived from such appearance before the Court, Grand Jury or State Commission of
Investieation, or from cooperation with the departmental investigation, may not be used against
3 the law enforcement officer in any subsequent criminal proceeding, other than a prosecution for
Fl : committing perjury during s.id testimony or departmental investigation. This concept is known
: as "use immunity.* .

The practical effect of this to a law eniforcement officer who is being investigated is as
follows. If that officer is being investigated for criminal activity and is asked or ordered by a

Court, Grand Jury or investigaling agency to give an account of the incident in question and that

officer invokes his Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination, then the Court, Grand

. \ ' Jury or investigating agency must inform the officer of its intention to compel such testimony X
or cooperation from him. The entity attempting to compel the officer’s testimony or cooperation

must also inform the officer that any evidence gained from such cooperation is immunized from

AR

use in a subsequent criminal proceeding under the laws of New Jersey, except for a prosecution
for perjury or false swearing committed while testifying or cooperating. The entity must further

inform the law enforcement officer that faiiure to appear, testify or cooperate when compelled

o T

10 do so under a grant of use immunity can subject the law enforcement officer to removal from

-10-
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office, position or employment.

r———————

If a law enforcement officer should be placed in such a position, that officer should take
the following action. First, if the investigation surrounds potential criminal activity or charges

involving the officer, the officer should invoke the Fifth Amendment privilege against

self-incrimination. The officer should also immediately contact an attorney and request that the
i entity seeking his cooperation speak to the attorney. Next, before any typ: of cooperation is
! given, the law enforc ment officer should ensure through the attorney that the appropriate
i warnings under the statutes, with respect to possible termination from employment for lack of
' cooperation and the grant of use immunity in the event of cooperation, are given to the law
enforcement officer in writing and signed by all parties involved. The officer should also be
assured and informed through the attorney as to the scope and subject mamr of the investigation
1o ensure lﬁal the immunity covers all topics that will be investigated. At some point, depending
on the nature and extent of the investigation, the officer may decide, notwithstandin-, the grant

of immunity, to refuse to cooperate and face departmental consequences as opposed to risking

cooperation with its inevitable potential .0 somehow aid the criminal investigation. This is a
! decision that must be arrived at carefully and after consultation with counsel. '

! In_no event should a law enforcement officer engage in any form of cooperation, be it
: testimony or cooperation in a departmental investigation (this includes even writing a written

| report or giving an oral report to a supervisor), unless the officer has first consulted with counsel

ez

i and received assurances as to the officer's constitutional and statutory privileges. These
assurances should be in writing. Attached to this explanation of the law, strictly by way of

example, is the type of written warning that may be presented to a law enforcement officer

R N




during the conduct of an internal investigation. A similarly worded waming would be provided
in the event the law enforcement officer is being compelled to testify in Court, or before a

Grand Jury or the State Commission of Investigation.

12
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA, P.C.

Mail to: P.O. Box 190, Middletown, N.J. 07748

Deliver to: 125 Half Mile Road, Middletown, N.J. 07748
(732) 741-3900

Attorneys for Defendant, Gregory S. Bruno.

STATE OF NEW JERSEY, | SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
s { LAW DIVISION (CRIMINAL)
Plaintiff, { MONMOUTH COUNTY

| CASE NO. 98-00489

f :.o l! .

GREGORY S. BRUNO,
{ ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATION

Defendant. IN LIEU OF AFFIDAVIT OF

EDWARD C. BERTUCIO, JR., ESQ.

I, Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq., an attomey-at-law in the State of New Jersey, hereby
certify the following facts to be true:

1. Tam a member of the law firm of Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla, P.C., counsel to
Defendant Gregory Bruno in the above-captioned matter. As such, I am fully familiar with the
facts I am about to relate.

2. Ihavsicviewed the Supplemental Certification of Assistant Monmouth County
Prosecutor Peter Warshaw, Jr. dated August 27, 1998.

3. Assistant Prosecutor Warshaw continues to maintain incorrectly that Norman M.
Hobbie, Esq. conducted the actual Tepresentation of Detective Ronald Ohnmacht in the matter of

Ward v. Township of Middletown, et al., despite the attomey’s Certifications of Mr. Hobbie,




Guy P. Ryan, Esq. and Michelle A. Querques, Esq., all of which are attached to Defendant’s
original response to the State’s Motion to Disqualify this law firm.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibits “A”, “B" and “C" are copies of correspondence from
Michelle A. Querques, Esq. regarding documentary discovery issues in the matter of Ward v,

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit “D" is correspondence from an attorney regarding the
substitution of attorney to which Assistant Prosecutor Warshaw refers, which correspondence is
addressed to Guy P. Ryan, Esq.

6. Attached hereto as Exhibit “E" is correspondence from Mr. Ryan to Detective
Ohnmacht as to the disposition of the matter by way of a successful motion for summary
judgment, which correspondence is datec' July 9, 1993.

7. Thus, as Mr. Hobbie, Ms. Querques and Mr. Ryan have previously stated in the
Certifications attached to the original responsive papers of this firm, Ms. Querques and Mr. Ryan
w‘ere in fact the counsel who litigated the matter of Ward v. Township of Middletown on a day to
day basis.

8. Mr. Warshaw further implies incorrectly that the law firm of Giordano, Halleran &
Ciesla has a “close connection” to the PBA of the Middletown Township Police Department
because of a eeminar given by Mr. Hobbie in March of 1997.

9. What Assistant Prosecutor Warshaw fails to inform the Court is that in or about 1992-
1993 Mr. Hobbie, along with several other Monmouth County criminal defense attorneys, was
invited and solicited by the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office to speak at a training

seminar,
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Hobbie's speaking partner was Monmouth County head of Homicide, Detective Michael 2
Dowling.

1i. Judge Anthony Mellaci, then Assistant Prosecutor Mellaci, was the moderator or
organizer of the training seminar.

12. The seminar focused on defense litigation’s techniques and cross-examination !
strategies. The specific purpose was to assist the detectives to let them know what the defense ¢
mmmmwmmmfamuﬁmm»unmmgf
law enforcement community. At no time did any member of the Prosecutor’s Office state that.- :

&l
5

giving such a seminar would in fact constitute a conflict of interest which would prevent the |
defense attomneys from participating in litigated matters. In fact, the Monmouth County \
Prosecutor’s Office solicited Mr. Hobbie’s participation. 1

13. After this seminar, a number of law enforcement personnel who attended the meeting,

thanked Mr. Hobbie and asked him if he would ever be interested in giving such a seminar to
members of the respective departments. Thereafter, when a request was made, Mr. Hobbie

would volunteer his time and give a seminar to the any department at no charge and with no
's Office has been aware of this for more than five years and at no

14
time has notified Mr. Hobbie that they objected to this type of seminar or indicated that it would |
constitute a conflict.

15. The seminar conducted on March 24, 1997 was also given voluntarily as a service to

the law enforcement community with the same understanding by this law firm that existed when




Mr.Hobb\'tqiinvihdloeonducttheumimforthe Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office, |
namely, that l& seminar was appreciated and a service to the law enforcement community. ‘
Nothing more; nothing less.

16. No~ was any attorney/client relationship involved. In fact, a number of officers, who
attended the March 24, 1997, seminar, were not from Middletown. Moreover, a number of the

officers who ded, were rep d by other attomneys or use other lawyers in other matters.

To suggest that as . result of the seminar there is any attorney/client relationship or other
influential situation is without merit and pure creative speculation. Mr. Hobbie has not spoken to

FEVGIT SRS,

a number of the attendees since that séminar. This was a training seminar IO Way &8
attomeylolient meeting, Nor was there any information discussed sbout pending law

enforcement cases. m{mofthenaninnmvidedfotlhscﬁmmofmun

officers read the booklet and asked questions. The majority of the seminar involved Mr. Hobbie
explaining cases that he had had and where the various witnesses had made mistakes and how

those mistakes should have heen avoided.

17. No information was leare. at that seminar about any investigative or interrogative
techniques of any Middletown police officer. In fact, it was the police officers who leamned of
8 . the techniques and strategies of the defense attomneys. The seminar was also attended by
members of offier lsw enforcement communities in addition to Middletown Township.

I&Ahmwmmoﬁihwinfmhmmmehwﬁmof
Klatsky & Klatsky represents the Middletown Township PBA. Said law firm has acted in that

capacity for a number of years. mshwﬁmdoumwMiMPBAamyPBA

Sids




19. Mr. Hobbie's public service in conducting a seminar sanctioned by the Prosecutor’s
Office, should not now be used as a “sword” in litigation to attempt to remove an adversary from i
a death penalty case. Mr. Bruno, the client, should have that decision.

20. Siguifi~antly, the original focus of the State’s Motion to disqualify this firm was

based on the allegation that this firm presently represents Detective Ohnmacht. It is now clear

that this firm does not presently represent Detective Oh ht. The Prx tor’s Office’s Se

assertion was i ate and its application should be denied. |
21. Yet, the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office persists in this eleventh hour creative
attempt to disqualify this firm where there is no basis to do so. Such an application in a capital

murder case such as this one is unprecedented. In fact, previous cases have shown that the

Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office d~es not make such applications against the other |-
attorneys who participated in the seminar or represent law enforcement officers. :

22. For example, Gregory Bruno was previously represented in an unrelated criminal case

by John T. Mullaney, Jr., Esq. in Indictment 95-07-1117 involving criminal charges that .

allegedly occurred in the Township of Middletown. The State’s witness list in that matter, a

. copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “F,” named a number of Middletown Township A
police officers as witnesses.
23. It is well-known that Mr. Mullaney was previously the First Assistant Monmouth

County Prosecutor and in that position had a supervising relationship with all members of law E

| enforcement in Monmouth County, including Middletown Township. In addition, Mr. Mullaney 3

| previously represented a Middletown Police Officer in a criminal case. See Exhibit “G.” Yet, 4
no application to disqualify Mr. Mullaney was ever made by the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s - ».,
Office when Mr. lviullaney represented Mr. Bruno to the conclusion of that previous matter. *
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24. Moreover, the Prosecutor’s Office has been aware of Mr. Hobbie's seminars to
different law enforcement personnel for many years. Not once has the Prosecutor’s Office

objected, even when Mr. Hobbie represented other criminal clients where Middletown Police

Officers were the investigating officers. It is respectfully requested that the Court look at the
genuine motives of the prosecution. There are numerous attoneys, who were long standing
members of the Prosecutor’s Office, who went into private practice and have very extensive
criminal defense practices. It is clear that these attorneys, as Assistant Prosecutors, developed 4
much more extensive relationships with law enforcement officers from the various towns. Yet,
| these attorneys are not conf icted out of cases because they gave a seminar or represented an
officer in the past.

25. Despite this contrary precedent, the Monmouth County Prosecutor’s Office persists in
3 pursuing this Motion in a capital murder case against this law firm without basis. .
26. Mr. Warshaw has previously indicated in Paragraph 9 of his Certification to his

original Motion to disqualify this law firm that “] am not in any way asserting, directly or

indirectly, that Mr. Hobbie or Mr. Bertucio have deliberately committed an ethics violation. To ' P
L the contrary, I have known and respected both attorneys for many years. This is very simply a v
{ question of law.”

27. It is the expectation of this firm as counsel for Gregory Bruno that this application is

i not a personal attack upon counsel representing Mr. Bruno in this case. It is not the intention of
this law firm to allow this issue to degenerate into personal attack on any attorney. However, in
view of the foregoing facts, the undersigned cannot understand the State's persistence in 4

pursuing this issue which is clearly without merit. » g
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7 28. I hereby certify that the foregoing facts are true to the best of my knowledge,
‘ information and belief. Iam aware that if any of the foregoing facts is willfully false, I am
fi subject to punishment.
| .
C
y Edward C. Bertucio, Jr., Esq.
Dated: September & , 1998
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

MERCER COUNTY OFFICE 125 MALF MILE ROAD OCEAN COUNTY OFFICE
MAALCAST BTATE STAREY 200 wain aTRERY .
TRENTYON. NEW LERSEY O8aRS POST OFFiCE 80X 190 TOMS MIVER, NEW LEASEY D878
1808) 883 3000 MIDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748 808) 34i-p800
(908) 741-3900 7iLE v,

FAX (908) 224-6599
PLEASE ACPLY TO: MIDDLETOWN
DIRECT DIAL NUMBEN.

December 24, 1992

Patricia B. Quelch, Esq.

Assistant Prosecutor oo R
Monmouth County Prosecutor's Office

Monmouth County Court House

Freehold, New Jersey 07728-1261

Re: State of N.J. v. Ward, et al.
Indictment Nos. 89-09-1641 and 89-10-1799
Case Nos. 89-03324 and 89-03350
4 U.S.D.C. Civil Action No. 92-1712 (GEBR)

Dear Ms. Quelch:

Thank you for forwarding copies of the documents pertaining
to the civil action in the above-referenced matter. Enclosed is

this firm's check in the amount of $114.50 to cover the cost of
same.

Thank you for your assistance and cooperation in this

r2gard.
Very truly yours,
s
2 e
MICHELE A. QUERQUES
MAQ/SK/sk
Enc.

c¢c: Bernard M. Reilly, Esq.
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i GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA e g
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION MICHELE A OUEROVES
Prgreipm
R N ATTORNEYS AT LAW VN D
THONAS A PLIBNIN 128 MALF MILE ROAD :-:::;:'::1-’5..
LINCROFT, NEW JERSEY 07738 OCO8IC nAANLIN OaLOD
. 3
mARR S BELLIN (908) 741-3900 ~ACL A BRUNO
ol g il FAX: (908) 224-6599 SaRGARCT S CAMELI
4 NORMAN » wOBSIT RUAT £ ANDERSO™

COWARD § mADIELY PAUL T COLELLA

STEVEN m BEALIN 81 CASY BYA
TRAENTON, NEW JERSEY OBES2S

JOOY V. wiLSCON
JOANNE 8. ORAY
MOBERT J. BLACKWELL

svager

nsLY 0e7sd

SHARLENE A

CHARLES O CONwWaY =
VICRT JAN ISLER (60®) s8n- 3000 (908) 341-9800 LIBA A BUTTO
SuUY P Aavaw
ROBSEAT u. BUANS
PLEASE REPLY TO: SREGA M. HOBBIC Rt
i OAVIO m. NACHMAN
POST OFFICE BOX 180 pinsinogioproion ]
K PAUL N, SCHNEIOER MIDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY O7748 LAURA A LANE
PAUL V. FERNICOLA
1 _— LAWAENCE 4. SHARON
! OF CouNsEL: v DIAL MUM ¥
8. THOMASF 2AGLIAND BIRECT DAL HUnaEh
— BCAN £ AL0AN
JOmN €. 81 In0ANS January 4, 1993 )
vesinee) FILE MO.

John Richard Wa d

N.J.8.P. #230300

Southern State Correctional Facility
Post Office Box #150

Phase II-Unit #10-L

Delmont, New Jersey 08314

Re: Ward adv. Ohnmacht, et al.

Dear Mr. Ward:

! Enclosed please find the following discovery ts to be
| ansvered by you within thirty (30) days of your roe‘zpt of same:

1. Defendant, Ronald D. Ohnmacht’s First Set of
Interrogatories to Plaintiff;

2. Defendant, Ronald D. Ohnmacht’s Pirst Notice
to Produce on Plaintiff.

Very truly yours, D
! Meohetc p 5
MICHELE A. QUERQUES

! :

: MAQ/SK/sk Vg
Enc. o’
cc: Bernard M. Reilly, Esq. &

i
Receipt of the within interrogatories is acknowledged this —

day of January, 1993,

JOHN RICHARD WARD

» Pa 80
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GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA PR e ;
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION =ICHELE A OUCROUES E
ATTORNEYS AT LAW pemersd oo
123 HALF MILE ROAD
| POST OFFICE BOX 190 _.‘..‘~: v 5
E MIDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748 SUsan o bavia
MARGARET B CARmEL:
4 (908) 7413900 ey
5 H FAX: (908) 224-6599 o D
r ::
# 44l CanT STATE STRCETY sveger
5 YOmus VJERSEY 0878
3 -oe!
s (3 ~w
$ :::::::: b lobled PLEASE REPLY TO: MIDDLETOWN
g PAUL w. BCHw —
3 . BCOTY TAM DIRECT OIAL NUMBER:
] mUSERBTRIn
3 am . mEALEY
d (908) 219-5481 Seaais o. Loty
:‘ FILE NO,
i January 25, 1993
8239/001
John Richard ward
: N. J. s. P.#230300
Southern State Correctional Pacility s
! P. O. Box 150 d
H Phase II Unit 10-L
Delmont, New Jersey 08314 L
; RE: WARD VS. RONALD D. OHNMACHT
| CIVIL ACTION NO. 92-1712(GEB)
H Dear Mr. Ward: 3
. { ! Enclosed please find and original and one copy of Defendant, iz
Ronald Ohnmacht's Answers to Plaintiff, John Ward's Pirst Set of
Interrogatories.
Very truly yours, Pt
MICHELE A. QUERQUES =
3 MAQ:kd P =~
: Enc.
i cc: Bernard M. Reilly, Esq. ‘_

Pa 81 >
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4 Losstln A Lo
: WILLIAM F. DOWD IO Mipls Loanns
N & NY. BARS Rt Bunk NS 07727
; BERNARD M. REILLY (004) 5377777 5
: JOHN T. LANE, JR. Fe (904) 330411
] M4 & LA BARS
i
| March 23, 1993
, Guy Ryan, Esquire
{ Giordano, Halleran & Ciesla
! 125 Half Mile Road
i Bex 190
! Middletown, NJ 07748
|
1 RE: Ward v. Middietown, et al
] Civil Action No. 92-1712 (GEB) noon
{
2 A
| Dear Mr. Ryan: .
| Enclosed please find three copies of Substitution of Attorney for
the above captioned matter. L2
4 3 i
| Paithtuy, : w &
L -.! 7 i >
L Bernard M. Reilly

Ta 82
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7 R e : GIORr ANO, HALLERAM & CiestLa i
P A g - i

oe ATTCORNEYS AT LAW i"

128 HALF MILE ROAD
POST OFFICE BOX 190

MiDDLETOWN, NEW JERSEY 07748 .
(908) 74i-3900 - saww-
FAX: (908) 224-6599 i, maarneis
” mesLBan

g 441 €aBY STATE STREEY 200 Main pracer ~y

3 TRENTON, new JERSEY OoaRe TOME MIVER, new JERBEY cere3

" eoe)eee 3900 (908) 34:. 9000

PLEASE ACALY TO! MIDOLETOWN > -
30 or IO.U::::‘-‘-' OIRECT DAL NUNBEM
e
tresieeer
July 9, 1993 8239/001

Detective Ronald D. Ohnmacht
Middletown Township Police Department
Kings Highway

Middletown, NJ 07740

§
}
i
§
f
!

RE: Ward v. Township of Middletown et al
Civil Action Wo.: 92-1712(GEB)

Dear Detective Ohnmacht: i

I am pleased to advise you that the United States District f
Court has granted Summary Judgement in your favor in the above-

referenced law suit. Enclosed Please find a copy of a Memorandum
and Order by the Honorable Garrett E. Brown, Jr., U.S.D.J. As
you can see, we successfully moved for Summary Judgement in your ®
favor. ;

v v It is possible that John wWard could file an appeal from this

—— Order, but that appeal would most likely have to await the
outcome off his claim against the other defendants. Accordingly,
Summary Judgement does not become a final judgement until the
conclusioni of the law suit against the remaining defendants.
Please contact me if you have any questions in this regard.

Very truly yours,

{ GIORDANO, HALLERAN & CIESLA
A Professional Corporation

LAy S

By:

]

! GRRijmk

g .~~~ Enclosure =

3 Seemmme . Sorsan M, Habbia. Tsn

g S Pa 83
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/ OFFICE OF THE COUNTY PROSECUTOR" ;
COUNTY OF MONMOUTH ;
T SOMLAENY PARR . >

(908) 431.7100 .
FAX (908) 409-3673 j
JOMN KAYE FAX (908) 409-4830 . et :::’:v:nm' i
Counry rom ROBERT A. HONTTKER; JRDC ;

SECOND ASSISTANT

WILLIAM D. GUIDRY -
OingcTon oF Teiay M

WILLIAM P, LUCIA
CHIEF OF INVESTIGATIC .8

To Defense Counsel:

Re State of New Jersey v. GREG BRUNO
ctment No. 95-07-1117

Pursuant to R. 3:13-3(a) the :State of New Jersey hereby
furnishes the .defendant: with copies of all relevant papers,
records, and documents now in the possession or control of the |
prosecuting attorne.. " Any books, tangible objects, buildings, or
places referred to in the enclosed papers as being within the ;
custody or control of the State will be made available for §
inspection by the defendant upon receipt’ of notice given two days
in advance of the date requerted for. inspection.

&

s b a1 TR

The State further provides: the - defendant with a list
containing the names and addresses of all persons known to have
relevant information in regard to the  above matter., including
therein a designation of thcse persons whom the State may call as
witnesses. This list may be amended as the result of subsequent

investigation.

The State 6! New Jersey cequests reciprocal Discovery pursuant i

to R. 3:13-3(b) by way of formal answer within twenty days from the i
receipt of this letter. |
|

|

|

|

The State of New Jersey also requests that if the defendant is
to rely in any wvay om the defense of alibi . the defendant comply

with the prq!!lions of R. 3:11-1.
Very truly yours,




GRAND JURY MINUTES WERE TAKEN ON:  6-20-95
GRAND JURY STENOGRAPHER: =Terry Gribben Transcribing Service

111 Sand Spring Drive
Eatontown, NJ 07724
908 542-5282

WITNESSES:
Cpl. John Bauers - Middletown PD
8gt. John lLenge Middletown PD
D8G Michael Cerame Middletown PD
Det. Frederic Deickmann Middletown PD
Robert Tomkins 670 Monmouth Dr, Pt. Monmouth
Edward Franchek 1272 Hwy 36, Hazlet Trailer Pk #7,Hazlet
Robert Feldman, DDS 207 Maple Ave, Red Bank
Andrew Farkas, M>D> Riverview Med. Ctr., 1 Riverview Plazs, !
Attn: Emergency Dept.
‘ Robert Wold M.D. Red Bank Radiology, 6 Riverview Plaza, *
. Red Bank
Kelly Meed, RN Riverview Med. Ctr. 1 Riverview PI,
ENCLOSURES:

1 pg Waiver of Immunity signed by Gregory Bruno

25 pg Medical records of Robert Tomkine from Riverview Med..
3 pgs Arrest report of Gregory Bruno

16 pg Invest report .

4 pg Statement of Gregory Bruno dtd 13/11/9¢

3 pg Statement of Robert Tomkins dtd 2/7/9%

3 pgs Rap sheet of Gregory Bruno dtd 5/3/95

1 pg Rap sheet of Gregory: Bruno dtd 12/22/94

Plea offer letter. X .

<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>